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To the Board and Shareholders of 
Societatea de Investitii Financiare Banat-Crisana S.A. 
Calea Victoriei nr. 35 A 
Arad, România 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

1 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Societatea de Investitii 
Financiare Banat Crisana S.A. (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 
December 2008, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow 
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory notes, presenting the following:  

 

 Net assets/Total equity and reserves:             RON 413,632 thousand  

 Profit/loss for the year:               RON   95,437 thousand, profit 
 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
2 Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 

these financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Romanian Accounting 
Standards, which comprise Accounting Law no. 82/1991, as revised, and Order of the 
National Commission of Securities no.75/2005 with the subsequent amendments and as 
described in the accounting policies presented in the notes to the financial statements. This 
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.  

 
Auditors’ responsibility 
 
3 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in paragraph 6, we conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing 
Standards issued by the Romanian Chamber of Financial Auditors and the International 
Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.  
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4 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 

Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

6 In accordance with Order no.75/2005 of the National Commission of Securities The 
Company, when impairment indicators exist, adjustments should be made so that the 
financial assets are presented in the financial statements at smallest available value 
as of the balance sheet date. The company has estimated the impairment of financial 
assets in accordance with Reg. 15/2004 of the National Commission of Securities, 
comparing the historical cost with the weighted average quotations in the Stock 
Exchange from the last three month for listed companies, respectively with the 
participation held in corrected net assets for the companies not listed. This accounting 
treatment is not in accordance with Order no.75/2005 of the National Commission of 
Securities, the value of the financial assets and the value of reserves created for the 
impairment of financial assets which has a debit balance as at December 31, 2008 are 
overstated by RON 25,812,257.   

 

Opinion  

7 In our opinion, except for the effect of the adjustment referred to in the paragraph 6 
above, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Societatea de Investitii Financiare Banat-Crisana S.A as of 
December 31, 2008, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended, in accordance with the requirements of the Romanian Accounting Standards, 
which comprise Accounting Law no. 82/1991, as revised, and Order of the National 
Commission of Securities no. 75/2005 with the subsequent amendments and as 
described in the accounting policies presented in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

8 Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 6g on recognition of 
impairment provisions for financial assets.  Starting with 2008, in accordance with the 
modification of CNVM Order 75/2005 by Order 11/2009, the Company has decided to 
recognize creation of impairment provisions for financial assets in reserves. Although 
this treatment is not restricted as per valid legislation, it is not consistent with the 
accounting policies applied in previous accounting periods. If the same accounting 
principles would have been applied in current year the net profit would be lower by 
RON 110,705,896. Furthermore, presentation of comparatives, respectively in the 
financial statements for the year 2007 does not reflect the changes made by Order 
no.11/2009. 
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9 Following the decision of CNVM no.2492 from December 3, 2007, the Entity will 

prepare for the year 2008- additionally to individual financial statements – 
consolidated financial statements, for the use of other users, but state institutions. On 
July 17, 2007 CNVM issued the Certificate no.238 through which include SIF entities 
in the exceptions presented in point 20 from annex to Order no.74/2005 and take 
notice of the impossibility for preparation consolidated financial statements for 2007. 
Until current date, no additional information are available according to which the Entity 
won’t be able to issue consolidated financial statements for 2008 at the term 
established by legislation in force.  
 

10 In recent months a number of major economies around the world have experienced 
strong volatility in the capital markets and severe restrictions in the credit markets. As 
a consequence of the recent market turmoil in capital and credit markets both globally 
and in Romania, notwithstanding any potential economic stabilization measures that 
may be put into place by the State, economic uncertainties arose surrounding the 
continual availability and cost of credit for the Company’s counterparties, future 
development of the markets and demand for goods and services they produce. The 
potential for economic uncertainties to continue in the foreseeable future and, as a 
consequence, the potential that assets of the Company may be not recovered at their 
carrying amount in the ordinary course of business, and a corresponding impact on 
the Company’s profitability cannot be estimated reliably as of the date of this report. 

 
Other Matters 

  
11 This report is made solely to the Company's shareholders, as a body. Our audit work 

has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's shareholders those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's shareholders as 
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed. 

 
12 The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial 

position, results of operations and a complete set of notes to the financial statements 
of the Company in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally 
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Romania. Accordingly, the 
accompanying financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed 
about Romanian legal and statutory requirements.  
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Report on conformity of the Administrators’ Report with the Financial Statements  

In accordance with the Order of the National Commission of Securities no. 75/2005, 
Section 9, article 9.1, point 2, we have read the Administrators’ Report. The said report is 
not part of the financial statements. In the Administrators’ Report we have not identified 
any financial information which is not in accordance, in all material respects, with the 
information presented in the accompanying financial statements.  

 
 
Ahmed Hassan, Audit Partner 
 
 
 

Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania  
under the certificate 1529/25.11.2003 
 
 
 
 
 
On behalf of: 
 
DELOITTE AUDIT SRL 
Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania  
under the certificate # 25/25.06.2001  
 
Bucharest, Romania 
March 27,  2009 

 

For signature please refer to the 
original Romanian version 
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Note 

December 31  
2008 

 December 31 
2007 

      

A. NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

I. INTANGIBLE NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

1.  Set-up expenses 1  -  - 

2.  Development expenses 2  -  - 

3.  Concessions, patents, licenses, trade 
marks and similar values and other 
intangible assets 3 

 
40,038 

 

16,983 

4.  Goodwill 4  -  - 
5.  Prepayments and intangibles in 
progress  5 

 
- 

 
33,001 

TOTAL: (row 01 to 05) 6 1 40,038  49,984 

II. TANGIBLE NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

1.  Land and buildings 7  5,685,259  5,846,082 

2.  Technical installations and machinery 8  671,564  695,393 

3.  Other installations, plant and furniture 9  118,013  98,501 

4.  Prepayments and property, plant and 
equipment in progress 10 

 
- 

 
36,185 

      

TOTAL: (row 07 to 10) 11 1 6,474,836  6,676,161 

      

III. FINANCIAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

 
1.  Shares held in related parties  12 

 
- 

 

- 

2.  Loans granted to related parties  13  -  - 

3.  Participating interests  14  -  - 

4.  Loans to entities to which the company 
is related by virtue of participating interests 15 

 
- 

 
- 

5.  Securities and other financial 
instruments held as fixed assets 16 

 
504,052,619 

 
460,546,182 

6.  Other receivables 17  -  - 

      

TOTAL: (row 12 to 17) 18 1;11 504,052,619  460,546,182 

      

NON-CURRENT ASSETS -TOTAL 
(rows 6+11+18) 19 

 
510,567,493 

 
467,272,327 

      

B.  CURRENT ASSETS      

I, INVENTORIES      

1. Consumables 20  3,237  3,236 

2. Works and services in progress 21  -  - 

3.  Prepayments for purchases of 
inventories 22 

 
- 

 
3,600 

      

TOTAL: (rows 20 to 22) 23  3,237  6,836 
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Note 

December 31  
2008  

December 31 
2007 

      

II. RECEIVABLES      

1. Trade receivables 24  32,231,492  83,003,817 

2.  Amounts receivables from related parties  
25 

 
-  - 

3.  Amounts receivable from participating 
interests  26 

 
-  - 

4. Other receivables 27  6,411,697  11,782,114 

5.  Receivables regarding the capital 
subscribed and not paid  28 

 
-  - 

      

TOTAL: (row 24 to 28) 29 5 38,643,189  94,785,931 

      

III. SHORT TERM FINANCIAL 
INVESTMENTS  

 
   

1.  Shares held in related parties 
30 

 
-  - 

2.  Other short term financial investments 31  3,841,750  8,277,779 

      

TOTAL: (row 30 to 31) 32  3,841,750  8,277,779 

      

IV. PETTY CASH AND BANK ACCOUNTS 33 15 152,494  120,812 

 
CURRENT ASSETS-TOTAL (rows 
23+29+32+33) 34 

 
42,640,670  103,191,358 

      

C. PREPAYMENTS 35  124,389  122,138 

      

D. PAYABLES WITHIN ONE YEAR 
 

 
   

1.  Debenture loans 36  -  - 

2.  Amounts due to credit institutions 37  -  - 

3. Receivables-creditors 38  -  - 

4.  Trade payables 39  117,239  103,663 

5.  Bills of exchange payable 40  -  - 

6.  amounts due to related parties         41  -  - 
7.  amounts due regarding the participating 
interests  42 

 
-  - 

8.  Other payables, including fiscal debts 
and social insurance debts 43 

 
46,043,242  41,126,501 

      

TOTAL: (row 36 to 43) 44 5 46,160,481  41,230,164 
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Note 

December 31 
 2008 

 December 31 
2007 

      

E, NET CURRENT ASSETS, NET 
CURRENT LIABILITIES (rows 34+35-44-
60,2) 45 

 
(4,111,210) 

 

61,743,957 

    
 

 

F, TOTAL ASSETS MINUS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES (rows 19+45-60,1) 46 

 
506,456,199 

 

529,016,179 

    
 

 

G, LONG-TERM DEBTS 
 

 
 

 

 

1,  Debenture loans 47  -  - 

2,  Amounts due to credit institutions 48  -  - 

3,  Receivables-creditors 49  -  - 

4,  Trade payables 50  -  - 

5,  Bills of exchange payable 51  -  - 

6,  Amounts due to related parties         
52 

 
- 

 

- 

7,  Amounts due regarding the participating 
interests  53 

 
- 

 

- 

8,  Other payables, including fiscal debts and 
social insurance debts 54 

 
5 35,628,110 

 

- 

      

TOTAL: (rows 47 to 54) 55  35,628,110  - 

      

H, PROVISIONS    
 

 

1,  Provisions for pensions and other similar 
obligations 56 

 
- 

 
- 

2, Provisions for taxes                                  
3, Other provisions  

57 
58 

 
53,232,964 
3,963,200 

 53,202,539 
8,719,510 

      

TOTAL PROVISIONS: (rows 56+57+58) 59 2 57,196,164  61,922,049 

      

I, DEFERRED INCOME 60  715,872  339,480 

1,  Subsidies for investments 60,1  84  105 

2,  Deferred income  60,2 10g 715,788  339,375 

      

J, CAPITAL AND RESERVES      

      

I, CAPITAL (rows 62 to 63) 61 7 54,884,927  54,884,927 

Out  of which:      

- subscribed capital unpaid 62  -  - 

- subscribed and paid in capital 63  54,884,927  54,884,927 
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Note 

December 31  
2008 

 December 31 
2007 

      

II, SHARE PREMIUMS 64  -  - 

      

III, REVALUATION RESERVES      

Credit balance 65 16 5,260,458  5,315,884 

Debit balance 66  -  - 

      
IV, RESERVES (rows 68-
69+70+71+72+73+74-75) 67 

16 
361,433,504 

 
387,463,431 

1,  Legal reserves  68  10,976,985  10,976,985 
2, Reserves set up from adjustments for 
loss of value of the securities held as 
financial fixed assets          Debit balance 69 

 
110,705,896 

 

- 

3,  Statutory or contractual reserves 70  -  - 

3,4,  Reserves set up from the value of 
securities/shares obtained for free 

5. Revaluation reserves at fair value 
6. Reserves representing surplus from 

revaluation reserves 
7. Other reserves 
8. Own shares 

 

71 
 

72 
 

73 
74 
75 
 

 

 
135,344,622 

 
- 
 

256,477 
214,855,420 

 
 

  
135,129,463 

 
- 
 

190,493 
241,166,490 

 
 

      

V, RESULT CARRIED FORWARD       

Credit balance 76  -  - 

Debit balance 77 16 103,384,386  103,384,386 

      

VI, RESULT OF THE YEAR      

Profit 78 3 95,437,422  122,814,274 

Loss 79  -  - 

Distribution of profit 80 3 -  - 

      

TOTAL EQUITY (rows 61+64+65-
66+67+76-77+78-79-80) 81 

 
413,631,925 

 
467,094,130 

 
 
These financial statements have been approved and authorized by the Company management 
on March 9, 2009 and completed in March 27, 2009, 
 
 
     
Ioan Cuzman   Ştefan Doba 
Chairman – Chief Executive Officer  Economic Director 
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 December 31 

2008 
  December 31 

2007 

     
A. INCOME FROM CURRENT ACTIVITY –TOTAL 

(row 02 to 11) 01 
 

124,521,972 
  

182,966,786 

1, Income from financial assets  02 79,565,545  62,000,540 
2, Income from short term financial investments  03 -  - 
3, Income from long term receivables 04 -  - 
4, Income from ceded financial investments  05 19,224,303  73,230,681 
5, Income from works executed and services 
provided  06 

-  - 

6, Income from provisions, reactivated receivables 
and sundry debtors  07 

 
19,225,892 

  
40,989,924 

7, Income from foreign exchange differences  08 99,167  3,397 
8, Income from interests  09 6,056,633  6,126,617 
9, Income from production held as fixed assets 10 -  - 
10, Other income from current activity  11 350,432  615,627 

     

B, EXPENSES FROM CURRENT ACTIVITY –
TOTAL (rows 13 to 20) 12 

 
27,859,803 

  
52,193,118 

11, Losses related to receivables related  to 
investments  13 

 
- 

  
- 

12, Expenses regarding ceded financial investments  14 9,215,803  24,301,153 
13, Expenses from foreign exchange differences  15 1,939  33,350 
14, Interest expense  16 2  48 
15, Expenses regarding commissions and fees 17 2,657,610  2,830,851 
16, Expenses regarding bank services an similar 
services  18 

29,009  30,816 

17, Depreciations, provisions, losses from 
receivables and sundry debtors 19 

 
688,951 

  
13,030,957 

18, Other expenses from current activity  
         (row 21+22+23+26+27) 20 

 
15,266,489 

  
11,965,943 

a, Materials expenses 21 175,899  160,369 
b, Power and water supply  22 156,731  124,042 
c, Personnel expense of which: (rows 24+25) 23 11,944,142  8,986,870 
C1, salaries  24 10,121,047  7,372,343 
c2, expenses regarding social insurance and 
protection  25 

 
1,823,095 

  
1,614,527 

d, Expenses regarding external provisions of 
services  26 

2,831,576  2,529,869 

e, Taxes and other similar payments  
27 

 
158,141 

  
164,793 

     

C, CURRENT RESULT 
-profit (rows 01-12) 
-loss (rows 12-01) 

28 
29 

 
 

96,662,169 
- 

  
 

130,773,668 
- 

     

D, INCOME FROM EXTRAORDINARY ACTIVITY  30 
 

- 
  

- 
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December 31, 

2008 
  December 31, 

2007 

     

     

E, EXPENSES FROM EXTRAORDINARY ACTIVITY  31 
 

- 
 

- 

  
  

 

F, EXTRAORDINARY RESULT 
-profit (rows 30-31) 
-loss (rows 31-30) 

 
 

32 
33 

 
 

- 
- 

  
 

- 
- 

19, TOTAL INCOME (rows 01+30) 34 

 
124,521,972 

  
182,966,786 

20, TOTAL EXPENSES (rows 12+31) 35 

 
27,859,803 

  
52,193,118 

     
G, GROSS RESULT 
-profit (rows 34-35) 
-loss (rows 35-34) 

 
36 
37 

 
96,662,169 

  
130,773,668 

21, INCOME TAX   
   

- income tax expense  38 
 

1,224,747 
  

7,959,394 

22, Other tax expenses not included in the elements 
above  39 

 
- 

  
- 

     
H, RESULT OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 
-profit (rows 36-38-39) 
-loss (rows 37+38+39) or (rows 38+39-36) 

 
 

40 
41 

 
 

95,437,422 

  
 

122,814,274 

 
 
 
These financial statements have been approved and authorized by the Company management 
on March 9, 2009 and completed in March 27, 2009, 
 
 
     
Ioan Cuzman   Ştefan Doba 
Chairman – Chief Executive Officer  Economic Director 
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    Year ended at    Year ended at  

No,  No,   December 31     December 31   

crt, Description row, Note 2008  2007 

A Cash flow from operating activities      

+ Receipts from trade receivables 01                 610,949                  170,368  

- 
Payments toward trade payables and 
employees 

02 
 

        (16,666,416)          (13,575,648) 

- Interest payments 03                          -                             -    

- Profit tax payment 04  (4,740,049)  (4,970,112) 

 
 
Net cash flow from operating activities 05  

          
(20,795,516)  

          
(18,375,392) 

B Cash flow from investment activities      

- 
Payments for purchasing shares and 
financial non-current assets 06  

          
(80,325,426)  

          
(79,648,515) 

- 
Payments for purhcasing tangible non-
current assets 07  

              
(240,567)  

              
(426,296) 

+ 
Receipts from sales of share and financial 
non-current assets 

 
08 

           
 52,143,447  

           
 83,383,615  

+ 
Receipts from sales of tangible non-current 
assets 09  

                   
48,240   

                   
203,330  

+ Interests cashed 10              8,090,307               3,937,061  

+ Dividends cashed 11            47,110,385             37,842,880  

- Other payments from investment activity 12                 (1,939)                 (5,651) 

+ Other receipts from investment activity 13                 4,717                 3,397 

 Net cash flow from investment activity 14  
           

26,829,164   
           

45,289,821  

C Cash flow from financing activity      

+ Receipts from issued shares 15                          -                             -    

+ Receipts from long term loans 16                          -                             -    

- Paid dividends 17          (30,366,905)          (26,404,715) 

 Net cash flow from financing activity 18  
          

(30,366,905)  
          

(26,404,715) 

 
 
Net increase of cash flow and equivalents 

 
19 

           
(24,333,257) 

           
 509,714 

 Opening balance of cash and equivalents 20 15           48,281,627             47,771,913  

       

 Closing balance of cash and equivalents 21 15 23,948,370  48,281,627 

 
These financial statements have been approved and authorized by the Company management 
on March 9, 2009 and completed in March 27, 2009, 
 
 
     
Ioan Cuzman   Ştefan Doba 
Chairman – Chief Executive Officer  Economic Director 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008 

EQUITY  BREAKDOWN 

  
January 1, 

2008 

INCREASES DECREASES  
December 31  

2008 
 
Note 

Total, from 
which: 

By transfer 
Total, from 

which: 
By transfer 

        
Share capital  54,884,927 -  -  54,884,927 
Capital premiums  - -  -  - 
Revaluation reserves 16 5,315,884 10,557  (65,983) (65,983) 5,260,458 
Legal reserves 
Reserves constituted from adjustments for  
loss of value of the securities held as  
financial fixed assets                       Debit Balance 
Contractual and statutory reserves 

16 
 

10,976,985 
 
 

- 
- 

- 
 
 

- 
- 

- 
 
 

- 
- 

- 
 
 

(110,705,896) 
- 

 10,976,985 
 
 

(110,705,896) 
- 

Reserves representing the surplus from  
revaluation reserves 

 
16 

 
190,493 

 
65,984 

 
65,983 

 
- 

  
256,477 

Other reserves  16 376,295,953 85,627,845 84,394,825 (111,723,756)  460,905,938 
Proper shares  - -  -  - 
Result 
Carried 
Forward 

Credit Balance 
 
Debit Balance 

 - -  - - - 
  

- 
 

- 
  

- 
  

- 
Result brought forward 
by the implementation 
for the first time of IAS  
less IAS 29 

Credit Balance 
 
Debit Balance 

16 5,437,415 -  - - 5,437,415 
       

 - -  -  - 
       

Result brought forward  
resulted from correction 
of errors 

Credit Balance 
 
Debit Balance 

 - -  - - - 
       

 - -  -  - 
Result brought forward  
resulted from implementation 
of accounting regulation 
according to CEE fourth 
Directive  

 
Credit Balance 
 
Debit Balance 

 - -  - - - 
       

 
16 (108,821,801) -  -  (108,821,801) 
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EQUITY  BREAKDOWN ( forward) 

  
0January 1, 

2008 

INCREASES DECREASES  
December 31  

2008 
 
Note 

Total, out of 
which: 

By transfer 
Total, out of 

which: 
By transfer 

 
 

 
      

Result from financial 
activity 
 
 
 Allocation of profit 
 

Credit Balance 
 
Debit Balance 
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 

122,814,274 95,437,422 - (122,814,274) (84,394,825) 95,437,422 - 

3 - - - - - -  
       

Total equity  467,094,130 181,141,808 84,460,808 (234,604,013) (84,460,808) 413,631,925 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 
 

EQUITY  BREAKDOWN 

  
0January 1, 

2007 

INCREASES DECREASES  
December 31  

2007 
 
Note 

Total, out of 
which: 

By transfer 
Total, out of 

which: 
By 

transfer 

        

Share capital  54,884,927 -  -  54,884,927 
Capital premiums  - -  -  - 
Revaluation reserves 16 5,428,971 21,540  (134,627) (134,627) 5,315,884 
Legal reserves 16 10,976,985     10,976,985 
Reserves constituted from adjustments for  
loss of value of the securities held as  
financial fixed assets                       Debit Balance 

       

Contractual and statutory reserves   - - -  - 

Reserves representing the surplus from  
revaluation reserves 

 
16 

 
55,866 

 
134,627 

 
134,627 

 
- 

  
190,493 

Other reserves  16 328,443,769 49,429,670 49,177,272 (1,577,486)  376,295,953 
Proper shares  - -  -  - 
Result 
Carried 
Forward 

Credit Balance  
Debit Balance 

 - -  - - - 
       

Result brought forward 
by the implementation 
for the first time of IAS  
less IAS 29 

Credit Balance  
 
Debit Balance 

 5,437,415 -  - - 5,437,415 
  -  -  - 

 - -  -  - 

       

Result brought forward  
resulted from correction 
of errors 

Credit Balance  
 
Debit Balance 

 - -  - - - 
       

 - -  -  - 
Result brought forward  
resulted from implementation 
of accounting regulation 
according to CEE fourth 
Directive  

Credit Balance  
 
Debit Balance 

 - -  - - - 
       

16 (108,821,801) - - -  (108,821,801) 
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EQUITY  BREAKDOWN (forward) 

  
January 1, 

2007 

INCREASES DECREASES  
December 31  

2007 
 
Note 

Total, out of 
which: 

By 
transfer 

Total, out of 
which: 

By 
transfer 

 
 

 
      

Result from financial 
activity 
 
 
 Allocation of profit 
 

Credit Balance  
 
Debit Balance  
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 

83,146,783 122,814,274 - (83,146,783) (49,177,272) 122,814,274 - 

3 (1,038,554)   1,038,554 - -  
       

Total equity  378,514,361 172,400,111 49,311,899 (83,820,342) (49,311,899) 467,094,130 

 
 

 
These financial statements have been approved and authorized by the Company management on March 9, 2009 and completed in March 
27, 2009, 
 
 
         
Ioan Cuzman      Ştefan Doba 
Chairman – Chief Executive Officer     Economic Director 
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1, NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 
a) GROSS VALUES 

 
  January 1,      December 31 
Intangible non-current  
assets  2008  Increases  Decreases  2008 
 
Set-up and development 
expenses  72,431  -  -  72,431  
Other fixed assets  362,718  44,649  2,982  404,385 
Prepayments and  
Intangibles in progress  33,001  1,060  34,061  - 
          
 
Total gross value  468,150  45,709  37,043  476,816 
 
 
Tangible non-current assets 
 
Land   53,300  -  -  53,300   
Buildings  7,821,131  6,327  -  7,827,458 
Installations and machinery  2,399,227  180,305  301,327  2,278,205 
Other fixtures and plant  467,131  50,899  6,435  511,595 
Prepayments and tangibles 
in progress  36,185  96,125  132,310  - 
 
Total gross value  10,776,974  333,656  440,072  10,670,558 
 
 
Property, plant and equipment were revaluated as at December 31, 2003, according to 
Government Decision no, 1553/18,12,2003,  
As at December 31, 2006, based on internal Decision no, 420/18,12,2006, the group ―Buildings‖ 
was revaluated, 
   
   January 1,      December 31 
Financial non-current  
assets  2008  Increases  Decreases  2008 
 
Securities held as 
non-current assets 562,693,475  155,569,851  13,531,063  704,732,263 
(Note 11)                             
Other receivables  -      -  -  - 
 
Total gross value  562,693,475     155,569,851  13,531,063  704,732,263 
 
TOTAL  
NON-CURRENT ASSETS  573,938,599     155,949,216      14,008,178  715,879,637 
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1, NON-CURRENT (continued) 
 
b) VALUE ADJUSTMENT (DEPRECIATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS FOR IMPAIRMENT OR 
LOSS OF VALUE) 
   Depreciations 
           recorded  
  January 1,  during  Reductions  December 31 
Intangible non-current 
 assets  2008  the year  or reversals  2008 
 
Set-up and development 
expenses  72,431  -  -  72,431 
Other fixed assets  345,735  21,594  2,982  364,347 
 
Total amortisation  418,166  21,594  2,982  436,778 
 
Property, plant and  
equipment  
Land   -  -  -  - 
Buildings  2,028,349  167,150  -  2,195,499 
Installations and machinery  1,703,834  202,774  299,967  1,606,641 
Other fixtures and plant  368,630  31,387  6,435  393,582 
 
Total depreciation  4,100,813  401,311  306,402  4,195,722 
 
   Depreciations 
          recorded 
  January 1,  during  Reductions December 31 
Financial assets  2008  the year  or reversals  2008 
 
Securities held as  
fixed assets   102,147,293  111,968,125  13,435,774  200,679,644 
Other receivables  -  -  -  - 
Total impairment  102,147,293  111,968,125  13,435,774  200,679,644   
 
TOTAL VALUE 
ADJUSTMENTS  106,666,272  112,391,030  13,745,158  205,312,144 
 
For the depreciation of the fixed assets the straight line method was used.            

The adjustments for impairment related to the securities held as financial assets as at January 
1, 2008, in the amount of RON 102,147,293 resulted from application of the Accounting 
Regulations in accordance with Directive IV of EEC and from recording of loss of value 
established at December 31, 2007 as the difference between the higher book value and the fair 
value determined according to CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004.  
 
The amount of RON 111,968,125 recorded as adjustment for the impairment during the year 
represents: 
- the adjustments for impairment pertaining to the securities held as financial assets as at 
December 31, 2008, in the amount of RON 110,705,896 resulted from evaluation of portfolio at 
fair value and from establishment of differences in minus beween net book value and fair value. 
The value of the adjustments was recognised as other reserves in equity section, in accordance 
with the alternative treatment allowed as a consequence of issuing Order no.11/2009 in 
completion of CNVM Order no.75/2005, from the year 2008 onwards. 
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1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 
 
If the financial non-current assets had been assessed at the price of the last transaction it would 
have resulted a suplimentary adjustment for depreciation in amount of 25,812,257 
(implemented by the date of 27 March 2009) 
 
- the depreciation established at December 31, 2007 in the amount of RON 1,262,229 related to 
the speculative investments, reclassified to the financial assets at December 31, 2008. 
 
The reductions or reversals of adjustments in the amount of RON 13,435,773 were recognised 
as income from the reversal of the adjustments for loss of value and they include the 
cancellation of the adjustments pertaining to the securities written off the portfolio and the 
reversal of the adjustments as the result of the evaluation of portfolio at fair value at December 
31, 2008 regard the securities of which fair value has increased. These adjustments were set up 
at that time by the income statement. 
 
  c) NET BOOK VALUE OF THE NON_CURRENT AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008 
 
      Adjustments 
  Gross     for  Net book 
  value  Depreciation  impairment  value 
Intangible non-current 
assets  476,816  436,778  -  40,038 
Tangible non-current 
assets  10,670,558  4,195,722  -  6,474,836 
Financial assets  704,732,263  -  200,679,644  504,052,619 
 
Total  715,879,637  4,632,500  200,679,644  510,567,493 
 
 

2,  PROVISIONS  
 

Breakdown 

 

 January 1, 
2008 

Transfers 

December 31 
 2008 

 
In account 

From 
account 

 
Tax provisions 

  
(a) 53,202,539 175,724 145,299 53,232,964 

Provisions for litigations       (b) 3,912,930 - - 3,912,930 
Other provisions for risks and 
charges 

 
(c) 4,806,580 50,270 4,806,580 50,270 

      

 
Total 

 
61,922,049 225,994 4,951,879 57,196,164 

 
a The provisions for taxes in the amount of RON 53,232,964 represent the deferred tax 

payable in the future. 
  
The most important parts of the provisions for the taxes with temporary fiscal effect are given in 
the following table: 
  December 31  December 31 
Provisions for deferred tax   2008  2007 
- securities value reserves  49,057,702  49,016,719 
- revaluation reserves  1,001,991  1,012,549 
- fiscal facilities reserves  3,173,271  3,173,271 
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Total provisions for income tax  53,232,964  53,202,539 
2.  PROVISIONS (continued) 

 
b  The provisions for litigations in the amount of RON 3,912,930 represent the value of the 

securities initially held by the Company in SC Celrom SA Drobeta Turnu Severin and that 
were received by the Company from AVAS (APAPS) Bucureşti further to an assignment. 
The Company has taken a legal action against AVAS further to ascertaining the absolute 
nullity of the share assignment contract in the amount of RON 3,912,930, share held in SC 
Celrom SA Drobeta Turnu Severin, concluded between AVAS and the Company  (Note 20) 
 

c   Other provisions for risks and charges in the amount of RON 50,270, represent charges for 
auditing of the financial statements concluded at December 31, 2008. 

 
 
3.   ALLOCATION OF PROFIT  
 

 December 31 
2008 

 December 31 
2007 

    
NET PROFIT TO BE DISTRIBUTED 95,437,422  122,814,274 
Destinations:    

1. For legal services -  - 

2. For statutory or contractual reserves -  - 
3. Reserves set up as own financing sources -  - 
4. Other reserves or distributions required by the law -  - 
5. To cover the accounting loss from the previous 
years  

-  - 

6. For dividends  -  - 
7. Distributions for risk fund -  - 
8. Distributions with special destinations -  - 
9. Other distributions -  - 

Total profit allocated  (149.365.315) 
 

- 
  

- 

PROFIT NOT DISTRIBUTED (before the General 
Meeting of the Shareholders) 

 
95,437,422 

  
122,814,274 

 
 
 
On April 24, 2008, the Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders approved the distribution 
of the net profit of 2007 per the following destinations:  
 
 
Allocation of profit: 

 
2007 

  
 122,814,274 

1. To set-up legal reserves - 

2. Reserves set up as own financing sources 84,394,825 
3. For dividends  38,419,449 
  

Total profit distributed  (149.365.315) 
 

122,814,274 
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3.   ALLOCATION OF PROFIT (continued) 
 
The Board of Directors proposes the following distribution of profit in the amount of RON 
95,437,422 for year 2008: 

-  the amount of RON 78,971,944 for other reserves, as own financing sources that can 
be used in the future according to the decisions adopted by the Ordinary General 
Meeting of the Shareholders; 
- the amount of RON 16,465,478 for dividends, RON 0.0300 gross per share. The 
dividends are entitled to the registered shareholders as at the reference date approved 
by the Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders.   

 
 
 
4.   ANALYSIS OF THE RESULT FROM CURRENT ACTIVITY (OPERATIONS) 

 
 

 
INDICATORS 

 

 
 
 

December 31 
 2008 

  
 
 

December 31  
2007 

 
Income from financial non-current assets   1 

 
79,565,545 

  
62,000,540 

Income from short term investments  2 -  - 
Income from long term receivables  3 -  - 
Income from ceded financial assets  4 19,224,303  73,230,681  
Income from works executed and services 
provided  5 

-  - 

Income from assets reactivated and sundry 
debtors  6 

-  - 

Income from provisions  7 19,225,892  40,989,924 
Income from foreign exchange differences 8 99,167  3,397 
Interest income  9 6,056,633  6,126,617  
Income from non-current production as:  
tangible and intangible non-current assets 10 

 
- 

  
- 

Other income from current activity (rows 12 
to 18) 11 

 
350,432 

  
615,627 

- from studies and research  
- from royalties and rents  
- from other sundry activities 
- from subsidies  
- from other income 
- from discounts obtained  
- from other financial income  
 

12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
 

- 
92,668 

- 
- 

257,753 
- 

11 
 

 - 
71,543 

- 
- 

291,720 
- 

252,364 
 

INCOME FROM CURRENT ACTIVITY  
(rows 01 to 11) 

19 
 

124,521,972 
  

182,966,786 

Losses related to the receivables related to 
investments  

 
20 

 
- 

  
- 

Expenses regarding the financial non-
current assets ceded  

21 9,215,803  24,301,153 

Expenses from foreign exchange 
differences  

22 1,939  33,350 

Interest expense  23 2  48 
Expenses regarding commissions and fees  24 2,657,610  2,830,851 
Expenses regarding bank services and 25 29,009  30,816 
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INDICATORS 

 

 
 
 

December 31 
 2008 

  
 
 

December 31  
2007 

similar services  
Losses from receivables and sundry debtors  26 3,569  59,141 
Expenses regarding the provisions and 
depreciations  

27 685,382  12,971,816 

 
Other expenses regarding current activity 
(rows 29+30+31+34+47) 

 
28 

 
15,266,489 

  
11,965,943 

- materials  
- power and water supply  
- personnel (rows 32+33) 

     -salaries 
     -social insurance and protection  

- external provision of services (rows 35 
to 46) 

     -maintenance and repairs  
     -royalties and rents  
     -insurance premiums 
     -studies and research  
     -protocol, advertising  
     -transport of goods and people 
     -travels, reassignments, transfers  
     -post and telecommunications  
     -other services executed by third                                                                               
parties  
     -other expenses  

-expenses regarding the 
discounts granted 

     -other financial expenses       
- expenses regarding other taxes and 

similar taxes  

29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
 

45 
46 
 

47 

175,899 
156,731 

11,944,142 
10,121,047 
1,823,095 
2,831,576 

57,030 
51,074 
48,093 

- 
281,354 

488 
152,115 
420,966 
558,135 
169,992 

- 
- 

1,092,329 
 

158,141 

 160,369 
124,042 

8,986,870 
7,372,343 
1,614,527 
2,529,869 

99,965 
29,754 
38,972 

- 
226,295 

2,513 
107,134 
221,067 
335,950 
234,576 

- 
- 

1,233,643 
 

164,793 

CURRENT ACTIVITY EXPENSES  (rows 
20 to 28) 48 

 
27,859,803 

  
52,193,118 

PROFIT FROM CURRENT ACTIVITY 
(rows 19-48) 49 

 
96,662,169 

  
   130,773,668 

 
 

The significant income and expenses are detailed and explained in Notes 13 Structure of the 
gross revenues and 14 Structure of expenses.  
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5.   STATUS OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
 

 
 
RECEIVABLES 

 
December 31 

2008 

 
DUE 

Within 1 year 
In more than 

1 year 

Suppliers-debtors and customers  1,153 1,153 - 
Debtors from capital increases a) 760,705 760,705 - 
Debtors from dividends not received b) 4,544,962 1,233,852 3,311,110 
Sundry debtors c) 4,786,260 4,186,260 600,000 
Penalties related to dividends not 
received 

 
d) 158,156  158,156 

Bank deposits and bonds  e) 32,230,339 32,230,339  
Tax on profit to be recovered  230,880 230,880  
Adjustments for the impairment of 
receivables—sundry debtors  

 
f) (4,069,266) - (4,069,266) 

TOTAL   38,643,189 38,643,189 - 

 

a The debtors from capital increases, in the amount of RON 760,705, represent amounts 
transferred during year 2008 by SIF Banat Crişana as capital increases to companies in the 
portfolio (Predet Aiud and Ramira Baia Mare), which by the time of reporting had not 
completed the records of the changes at the Trade Registery Offices in their counties of 
origin. (Balance as at 31.12.2007: RON 5,480,076) 

b The debtors from dividends not received in the amount of RON 4,544,962, include dividends 
to receive related to the previous years in the amount of RON 3,311,110 and dividends to be 
received for the year 2007 in the amount of RON 1,233,852. (2007: RON 5,684,885) 

c Sundry debtors in the amount of RON 4,786,260 mainly comprise a company (APAPS 
Bucharest with the amount of RON 3,913,033) against which there are litigations pending 
regarding investments (2007: RON 5,293,344). 

d Penalties pertaining to the dividends not received in the amount of RON 158,156, represent 
penalties claimed from the debtors of SIF for dividends not received. (2007: RON 164,406)  

e Bank deposits and bonds in the amount of RON 32,230,339 represent the value of the bank 
deposits and of the corporate bonds and bonds issued by municipalities, due within one 
year, held by SIF Banat Crişana, recorded in accordance with Order No. 75/2005, modified 
by Order no.11/2009, of the National Commission of Securities (2007: 82,977,943). 

f The adjustments for the impairment of receivables in the total amount of RON 4,069,266 
(2007: RON 4,840,597) were made for:   
- dividends to be received from the previous years in the amount of RON 3,311,110 and the 
penalties related to the dividends not received in the amount of RON 158,156;    
- the cost of the shares issued by Vest Metal Oradea not received at due date in the 
amount of RON 600,000; 
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5.   STATUS OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (continued) 
 

RECEIVABLES 
 

December 31 
2007 

DUE 

Within 1 year 
In more than 

1 year 

Suppliers-debtors and customers  25,874 25,874 - 
Debtors from capital increases a) 5,480,076 5,480,076 - 
Debtors from dividends not received b) 5,684,885 1,908,694 3,776,191 
Sundry debtors c) 5,293,344 4,393,344 900,000 
Penalties related to dividends not 
received 

 
d) 164,406  164,406 

Bank deposits and bonds  e) 82,977,943 82,977,943  
Tax on profit to be recovered  

f) (4,840,597) - (4,840,597) 

TOTAL   94,785,931 94,785,931 - 

     
 
  

PAYABLES 
 

 

December 31 
2008 

DUE 

 
Within 1 

year 

 
From 1 to 5 

years 

In 
more 

than 5 
years 

       
Suppliers  117,239 117,239 - - 
Debts regarding the personnel 
and social insurance 

 
321,972 321,972 - - 

Other taxes g) 67,024 67,024 - - 
Dividends payable to 
shareholders 

 
h) 45,370,108 45,370,108 - - 

Sundry creditors i) 284,138 284,138 - - 
Amounts payable for financial 
assets 

 
j) 35,628,110 - 35,628,110 - 

 
Total 

 
81,788,591 46,160,481 35,628,110 - 

 
 

g Other taxes in the amount of RON 67,024 represent mainly salary taxes in the amount of 
RON 61,842 pertaining to December 2008 (2007: RON 3,357,556).  

h Dividends payable to the shareholders in  the amount of RON 45,370,108 represent 
dividends payable for 2007 and outstanding from the previous years, whose payment is 
underway. (2007: RON 37,317,565). 

i Sundry creditors in the amount of RON 284.138 (2007: RON 34,102) mainly comprise the 
amount collected from the company Mioriţa Satu Mare, which represents the value of the 
redeemed shares and 12.35% from the share capital and the difference is the object of a 
litigation. The final offset of the transaction will be made when the litigation will be finalized. 

j The amount payable for financial assets in the amount of RON 35,628,110 (2007: RON 0) 
represents subscription for the increase in share capital of 2 companies (Central Petroşani 
SA and Calipso Oradea), amounts which will be transferred in maximum 3 years. 

 
5.   STATUS OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (continued) 
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PAYABLES 
 

 

December 31 
2007 

DUE 

 
Within 1 year 

 
For 1 to 5 

years 

In 
more 
than 5 
years 

       
Suppliers  103,663 103,663 - - 
Debts regarding the 
personnel and social 
insurance 

 

417,278 417,278 - - 
Other taxes g) 3,357,556 3,357,556 - - 
Dividends payable to 
shareholders 

 
h) 37,317,565 37,317,565 - - 

Sundry creditors i) 34,102 34,102 - - 

 
Total 

 
41,230,164 41,230,164 - - 

 
 

 
6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS 
 

 
6.1. General information 
 
This reporting is the responsibility of the management and has been prepared in accordance 
with the Accounting Regulations in accordance with Directive IV of EEC applicable to the 
authorized entities, regulated and monitored by the National Commission of Securities approved 
by Order no. 75/2005 of the chairman of the National Commission of Securities (Order 
no.75/2005), modified by Order no.11/2009. The accounting regulations in accordance with 
EEC Directive IV approved by Order no. 75/2005, modified by Order no.11/2009, is applicable 
together with the Accounting Law no.82/1991 (revised and modified).  
 
The accounting reporting was prepared at historic cost. The value of the property, plant and 
equipment has been adjusted by the revaluation of the property, plant and equipment recorded 
according to the Romanian Accounting Standards. The value of the financial assets was 
diminished by the adjustments for the loss of value.  
 
Order no. 75/2005 of chairman of the National Commission of Securities regarding the approval 
of the Accounting Regulations in accordance with with EEC Directive IV applicable to the 
entities authorized, regulated and monitored by the National Commission of Securities, modified 
by Order no.11/2009, provides for the preparation of the financial statements at historic cost. 
 
  
6.2. Basis of preparation 
 
The accounting reporting was prepared in compliance with the accounting principles, according 
to the accrual principle. Thus, the effects of the transactions and of other events are recognized 
when they occur and are recorded in the accounts and reported in the financial statements in 
the respective periods. 
 
 
 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
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The accounting reporting was prepared in compliance with the accounting principles: 
 

 Going concern – it involves that the Company will continue to operate normally in a 
predictable future without being faced with the impossibility of continuing the activity or 
without significantly reducing the activity; 

 

 Consistency principle – it involves the application of the same rules and norms 
regarding the evaluation, recording in the accounts and presentation of the elements of 
assets and liabilities, as well as of the results, by ensuring the comparability in time of the 
accounting information; 

 

 Prudence principle – the value of each element is determined taking into account: 
a) only the profits recognized until the time of the preparation of the financial 

statements; 
b) the predictable obligations and potential losses that arose during the reporting 

period ended or during a previous financial year, if such obligations occur between 
the balance sheet date and the date of preparation; 

c) all impairments, regardless of whether the result of the year is profit or loss; 
 

 The cut off principle – it involves that all revenues and expenses corresponding to the 
financial year for which the reporting is made be taken into account regardless of the date 
when the amounts were received and the payments were made; 

 

 The principle of separate evaluation of the elements of assets and liabilities– 
according to this principle, the value of each individual element of asset or liability is 
determined separately; 

 

 Intangibility – the opening balance of a financial year must correspond to the closing 
balance of the previous year; 

 

 Non offsetting principle – the values of the elements that represent assets cannot be 
offset with the values of the elements that represent liabilities, that is the expenses cannot 
be offset with the income; 

 

 Substance over form – the information presented in the annual financial statements 
must reflect the economic reality of the events and transactions, not only their legal form; 

 

 Materiality principle – any element that has a significant value must be presented 
separately in the annual financial statements. The elements with insignificant values of the 
same nature or with similar functions must be added, the separate presentation not being 
necessary. 

 
 
6.3. Accounting policies  
 
 
Currency of presentation 
 
All figures are presented in RON. 
 
 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
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Use of estimates 
 
In order to prepare this accounting reporting in accordance with Order 75/2005, modified by 
Order no.11/2009, as well as to get information that is not always available directly from the 
Company accounts, the Company management has made estimates based on the best 
information available. Although these individual estimates present a certain degree of 
uncertainty, their general effect on the financial statements is not material.  
 
Going concern 
 
The nature of the Company business and the result of the current economic policies 
implemented in real operational conditions make it possible for variations to appear with regard 
to the future inflows of cash. The administrators believe that the Company will be able to 
continue as a going concern in the predictable future and, as a result, these financial statements 
have been prepared based on this principle. 
 
 
Conversion of the transactions in foreign currency 
 
The transactions made by the Company in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates 
ruling at the transaction date. The gains and losses resulted from settling the transactions in a 
foreign currency and from the conversion of the monetary assets and liabilities expressed in a 
foreign currency are recognized in the statement of operations for the year.  
 
The operations made in foreign currencies considered the official exchange rate of RON ruling 
as at the date of the operations.  
 
The profit or loss resulted from foreign exchange and from translations of the elements 
expressed in foreign currency were recorded in the statement of operations. 
 
RON is  readily convertible outside Romania. As at December 31, 2008, the main official 
exchange rates used were: RON 2.8342/ 1 USD (2007: 2.4564) and 3.9852 RON/1 EURO 
(2007: 3.6102).  
 
 
Receivables 
 
Receivables are evaluated on the estimated value to be realized, after the adjustments made 
related to doubtful receivables. There was performed an estimation for doubtful debtors based 
on the outstanding amounts from the balance sheet. There were performed adjustments for 
doubtful receivables when they were identified by recording adjustments for depreciation.  
 
Other receivables 
 
These are recorded at the estimated value to be recovered. 
 
Tangible and intangible assets 
 
Every fixed asset with an acquisition cost over 1,800 RON and an estimated useful life more 
than one year is being capitalized. Fixed assets with a lower cost than 1,800 RON are charged 
on expense. 
 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
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1. Cost 
 
Initially tangible assets were presented on acquisition cost. Subsequent, tangible assets were 
revaluated, by indexation of the historic cost with the index based on a Government decision 
and based on the evaluations performed by an ANEVAR accredited evaluator. 
 
The plus or minus resulted from the tangible assets revaluation is being recorded on the debit or 
credit of the account ―Revaluation reserve‖, as the case may be.  
 
Although, the increase noted from the revaluation is recognized as income if it compensates a 
decrease resulted from the revaluation of the same asset, previous recognized as expense. 
  
If the net book value of the asset is decreased as a result of the revaluation, this decrease is 
being recognized as an expense. Although, a decrease resulted from revaluation is being 
discharged directly on every related revaluation surplus, with the condition that the decrease 
does not exceed the initial value recorded as surplus from revaluation of the same asset. 
 
The surplus resulted from the revaluation included in equity can be transferred  in reserves 
when the surplus is being realized and taxed. 
 
The net book value of the tangible assets was adjusted depending on the revaluation results, 
and the surplus was credited in the revaluation reserves from equity. 

 
The capital repair expenses are capitalized, if they increase the useful life of the fixed asset or 
they lead to a material increase of the asset’s capacity to generate incomes. The minor 
maintenance and repair expenses are charged on expenses when they are carried out. 
 
The elements of tangible assets which are ceased or assigned are deleted from the balance 
sheet together with the related accumulated depreciation. The gain or the loss resulted from 
such a procedure is determined as difference between the obtained amount and the net book 
value and is included in the financial result. 
 
If the net book value of the asset is bigger than the estimated recoverable amount, the net book 
value is being decreased at the level of its estimated recoverable value. 
 

1. Depreciation  
 

The depreciation is calculated on cost, using straight line method, on the estimated useful life of 
the assets, as follows: 
  YEARS 
 
Buildings and special constructions 10 - 50 
Plant and machinery 3 - 30 
Furniture, office equipment and other non-current assets 3 - 20 
 
Land is no subject to depreciation because it is supposed to have an unlimited useful life. 
 
The company has verified the recording value of the assets to avoid being more than their 
recoverable value. The fixed assets held and used by the company are analyzed on the 
perspective of decreasing their value every time there is the possibility not to recover the net 
book value of an asset from the future cash flows. If estimated cash flows are not enough to 
cover the net book value of the asset there must be applied a correction which should reflect the 
loss of value of the fixed assets. 
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6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
 
Financial assets depreciation 
 
When there are value losses for financial investments, adjustments are made for the value 
losses in order for these to be revaluated at the smallest value given at the date of the balance 
sheet. 
 
The CNVM Order No. 75/2005 modified by Order No.11/2009 provides an alternative 
accounting treatment for the value adjustments whether in the profit and loss account or at other 
reserves in equity. Confronted by this provision, starting financial year 2008, the Company 
decided to recognise the value of the adjustments at other reserves in equity, using the 
alternative accounting treatment  
 
The evaluation at minimum values cannot be further used if the reason for which the adjustment 
was made no longer exists. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of restated cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined by 
the first-in first-out (FIFO) method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less cost of completion and selling expenses. 
 
Intangible assets 
 
An intangible asset must be recognized if and only if it is estimated that the company will obtain 
the future economic benefits attributable to the asset and the cost of the asset can be evaluated 
in a reliable manner. 
 
Expenditure on acquired concessions on land is capitalized and amortized using the straight-
line method over the contractual duration of the concession, but not exceeding 5 years. 
 
Expenditure on patents, licences, trademarks is capitalized and amortized using the straight-line 
method over the useful life of these. Intangible re not revaluated. 
 
The net book value of every intangible asset is reviewed and adjusted yearly from the 
perspective of the permanent depreciation where this is considered to be necessary. 
 
The portfolio of financial instruments includes: 
 
- Financial investments  
- Short term financial investments 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets include: investments and other financial instruments held as assets and other 
non-current receivables. 
 
Investments and other instruments held as assets include: investments held as financial 
assets available for sale, investments held at closed funds, debentures issued by the 
municipality, state financial – banking companies with due date over than one year. 
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6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
 
Other receivables include bank deposits with due date older than one year. 
 
Financial assets evaluation 
 
- Input  date  - in the company the financial assets are evaluated on acquisition cost 
- Output date – from the company the financial assets are evaluated on input value using 

weighted average cost method 
- Financial year end – the input value is compared with the inventory value. The differences 

in minus between the inventory value and net book value is recorded on depreciation 
adjustments or value losses. The additionally differences between the inventory value and 
net book value is not recorded.  
 

 
For investments the inventory value or fair value is established based on the stipulation of the 
Code CNVM no. 15/2004. 
 
For listed titles, the fair value is calculated based on the weighted average price of the market 
prices over the previous 3 months prior to financial reporting. 
 
For unlisted titles, the fair value is established based on the periodical financial reports issued 
by the Ministry of Finance, weighted depending on the control, as it is stipulated in CNVM 
Regulation no. 15/2004. Exception to this rule are the unlisted titles held in the banking 
companies, whose fair value is determined applying the percentage from the share capital, held 
by the financial investment company, to the issuer’s equity remitted to the Romanian National 
Bank. 
 
The Company has chosen to evaluate the investments held as financial assets according to  
CNVM Regulation no.15/2004 since it is a generally accepted method of evaluation, used for 
reporting to CNVM and to investors the net asset value of the Company on a weekly, monthly 
and annual basis. The Company believes that the value of the financial assets reported to 
investors cannot be determined by employing other techniques. (supplement added on March 
27, 2009) 
 
The gains or losses resulted from the transaction of the financial assets are recognized in the 
income statement at the moment they incurred. 
 
When a financial asset, available for sale, is considered to be depreciated, starting financial 
year 2008, the loss of value will be included to other reserves in equity section, using the 
alternative accounting treatment provided by CNVM Order No. 75/2005, modified by Order 
no.11/2009. 
  
The interest gain from holding the titles is recorded as income from interests, and the dividends 
to be received become income from dividends. 
 
For listed companies, all the acquisitions and sales of titles which implies deduction in a related 
period, established in accordance with the regulations or market conventions, are recognized at 
the moment when the transaction incurred at the Stock Exchange.  
For unlisted companies, the acquisitions of titles are recognized at the moment of register at the 
Trade Register, and the sales at the moment of the transaction deduction. 
 
The management of the company decides the way the classification of the financial assets will 
be made at the acquisition date. 
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Short term financial assets include shares acquired for making profit on short term. 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
 
Short term financial assets evaluation: 
 
- Input date -  in the company the financial assets are evaluated on acquisition cost 

 
- Output date – from the company are evaluated on input value using weighted average cost 

method 
 
- Financial year end -  for the depreciation of investments held as current assets, when stock 

count takes place, adjustments for loss of value are reflected on the expenditure. The 
additional differences between the inventory value and net book value is not recorded. 

 
Securities accepted to be traded on a regulated market are evaluated at quoted value of the last 
trading day, and the securities not traded are evaluated at the historic cost less the possible 
adjustments made for losses of value.  

 
 

Liabilities     
 
The liabilities are recorded at the nominal value. 
 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents in currency are presented in balance sheet as at closing exchange 
rate communicated by Romanian National Bank. 
 
Foreign exchange differences are recorded  on foreign exchange income or foreign exchange 
loss, as the case may be. 
 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise petty cash, 
bank accounts on sight, letters of credit, other short term highly liquid investments and bank 
overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are included in borrowings in current liabilities. 
 
Cash equivalents are considered to be short term investments, with high level of liquidity, which 
may be easy to become cash. 
 
 
Income from transactions 
 
All the purchases and sales of titles which imply deduction established based on the regulations 
or market conventions, are recognized at the deduction date of the transaction by Stock 
Exchange for the listed companies, or by the Trade Register for unlisted companies. 
 
The incomes from investments are recognized at gross value (trading value), and the rest of the 
short term investments are presented at net basis (the difference between value of sale and 
cost). 
 
Interest income and expense 
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Interest income is presented periodical (monthly), proportional with the revenue, in the income 
statement for all the financial instruments. Interest income includes fixed revenues from financial 
investments and commercial titles, also deductions and premiums related with treasury titles. 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
 
For interest income with low possibility of cashing, the depreciation or value loss is presented 
separately on expense. If the reason is no longer reliable, the adjustments for depreciation or 
value loss are decreased or cancelled. 
 
 
Commissions and fees 
 
Commissions and fees are recorded at the moment they incur. Commissions resulted from 
negotiation or participation at negotiation of transaction, as borrowing, shares or other value 
titles, the acquisition or sale of the business, are recognized when they are concluded. 
 
 
Other current incomes and expenditures 
 
Other current incomes and expenditures are booked when they arise. 
 
 
Income from financial non-current investments include: 
 
- Dividends income, recorded when there is established the right for receipt of the 

shareholders and on the values presented into the financial statements; 
- Income form stock received as a result of share capital increases from share premium or 

reserves constitute from net profit made by the companies in the SIF portfolio are recorded 
at par value as follows: 
- In case of unlisted titles: at the date of recording the share capital increase by the Trade 

Register; 
- In case of listed titles: at the date of recording the changes by the Stock Exchange 

Register. 
 

  Profit per share 
 
The basic Profit per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the joint 
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares pertaining to the period. 
 
Pensions and other post retirement benefits 
 
In the normal course of its business, the Company pays the pension contributions for its 
employees to social security and to unemployment fund, in accordance wih the regulations  in 
force, calculated at the gross value of salaries. The values of the contributions are recorded in 
the income statement in the same period when payroll expenses are recorded.  All the company 
employees are members of the pension plan of the Romanian state. The Company does not 
operate any other pension plan or post retirement benefit plan and therefore has no other 
obligations regarding the pensions. The Company has no obligation to offer post retirement 
benefits to the employees.  
 
Provisions 
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Provisions are recognized at the time when the Company has a legal or implicit obligation 
resulted from past events, when an outflow of resources is necessary to settle the obligation 
and when a reliable estimate can be made with regard to the value of the obligation.  

  
 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
 
Dividends to be distributed 
 
Dividends which are declared before the balance sheet date are recognized as liabilities at the 
balance sheet date. The dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet date are not 
considered to be liabilities, but are presented in notes of the financial statements. 
 
Financial instruments 
 
Financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, 
receivables and commercial liabilities, financial investments and other long term assets and 
liabilities. The particular methods of recognition are presented separately into the accounting 
policies of each of these elements. 
 
The company is exposed to a credit risk owed to financial investments, its receivables and other 
types of receivables. For all new investments are normally required references for reliability. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments represents the amount for which an instruments can be 
changed between parties who are willing to conclude a transaction at an objective price. This 
represents a general estimation of the possible value which can never be realized. 

 
The Company is exposed to a lot of variable economical fluctuations, as follows: 
 
(a) Exchange rate of RON towards foreign currencies; 
(b) Interest rate with influence upon assets and financial liabilities; 
(c) Depreciation/appreciation of the local currency (RON). 
 
Cash and cash equivalent, receivables and other current assets, suppliers, other obligations, 
liabilities and borrowings which are reflected in the financial statements at fair value, 
consequence of the short term of this instruments.  
 
The evidence of the securities held at companies from portfolio is based on the historical cost, 
decreased with the adjustments for loss of value calculated as difference between net book 
value and fair value, as provided in Order no. 75/2005, modified by Order no.11/2009. In case 
of the securities held as fixed assets the fair value is established in accordance with Regulation 
nr. 15/2004. This regulation provides that in case of the quoted securities held as assets, the 
fair value is calculated on the base of weighted average price at stock market calculated for the 
last 3 calendar months. In the case of securities which are not quoted the fair value is calculated 
on the base of weighted net assets depending on the shares held. 
 
In case of the speculative investments the fair value represents the quoted value on the last day 
of trading, in accordance with Order no. 75/2005 of the National Commission of Securities, 
modified by Order no.11/2009. 
 
 
Compensation and barter transactions 
 
During its activity the Company performs compensation procedures, regularization and changes 
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of titles using the assignment concluded with AVAS (FPS) within the privatization process. The 
transactions with such titles, given or receive, are reflected within the reserve accounts, 
according with the accounting legislation. 
 
 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS (continued) 
 
Tax on profit 
 
Tax on profit is calculated based on the accounting result, corrected with tax rate (in force as at 
closing date of balance sheet) applied on deductible and non-deductible elements. 
 
 
Provisions for taxes 
 
The provision for taxes are set up for future payable amounts owed to state budget, provided 
that the related amounts do not appear as liability in relation with state. 
 
Provision for income tax applies on the temporarily differences between tax base of an asset or 
liability and its NBV as per balance sheet. The tax is calculated based on the estimated rates to 
be applied in the moment of asset’s valuation or liability cancelling. 
 
The provisions for taxes are calculated starting January 1st, 2006 based on the Accounting 
Regulations conformant with Directive IV of EEC. 
 
The Company pays a 16% tax on profit in 2007 and 2008. 
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7.     INVESTMENTS AND FINANCE SOURCES: 
 
 
a) Shares 
  December 31  December 31 
   2008  2007 
 
Share capital (number of shares)  548,849,268  548,849,268 
 
 
The share capital of SIF Banat Crisana is in amount of RON 54,884,926.80 being divided into 
548,849,268 shares, with nominal value of RON 0.1000 and it is resulted from the direct 
subscriptions made upon SIF capital or by changing into shares the dividends to be received 
based on Law no. 55/1995 or Law no. 133/1996. As at December 31, 2008 the number of 
shares was 5,860,081 (2007:  6,231,848). 
 
The shares issued by SIF Banat Crisana are traded on the Bucharest Stock Exchange since 
November 1999. The evidence of the shares and shareholders is kept by Depozitarul Central 
S.A. Bucharest. 
 
According to the Statute, no legal or individual person can achieve shares in the Company if the 
result of this achievement,  the legal or individual person holds more than 1% from the total 
subscribed shares. 
The right to vote is suspended for the shares held by the shareholders exceeding the 1% limit. 
These shareholdes are compelled to sell the exceeding shares held above the 1% limit in 3 
months time. 
 
As at December 31, 2008 there is one shareholder, who holds more than 1% of the share 
capital of the Company. (2007: 0 persons) 
  
Shareholders structure as at December 31, 2008 is the following: 
 

  December 31 2008  

 No. of shareholders No. of shares  Percent Value (RON) 

Individuals 5,859,511 306,959,327 55.93% 30,695,933 

Legal persons 570 241,889,941 44.07% 24,188,994 
 

TOTAL 5,860,081 548,849,268 100.00% 54,884,927 

 
Shareholders structure as at December 31, 2008 is the following: 
 

  December 31 2007  

 No, of shareholders No, of shares  Percent Value (RON) 

Individuals 6,231,278 304,672,435 55.51% 30,467,244 

Legal persons 570 244,176,833 44.49% 24,417,683 
 

TOTAL 6,231,848 548,849,268 100.00% 54,884,927 
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7.    INVESTMENTS AND FINANCE SOURCES: (continued) 
 
 

b) Debentures 
 
The Company doesn’t have debentures issued as at December 31, 2008 or as at December 31, 
2007. 
 
 

8.  INFORMATION REGARDING EMPLOYEES, ADMINISTRATION, MANAGEMENT AND 
SECURITY 
     
  2008  2007 
 
Payroll expense  5,534,499  5,126,425     
Social security contributions   1,823,095  1,614,527     
Other expenses related to employees  186,548  193,988  
Expenses for incentives granted to the employees  4,400,000  2,051,930   
and to the administrators as a result of the realistion of profit* 
 
TOTAL  11,944,142  8,986,870   
 
* At December 31, 2007 there was set up a provision for risks and charges for incentives 
granted to the employees and to the administrators as a result of the realisation of the profit for 
year 2007. During year 2008, after approval of the financial statements for year 2007, the 
provision was reversed to the income and at the same time the amount was included in 
expenses for incentives granted to the employees and to the administrators. 
 
Payroll expenses in year 2008 and year 2007 were in the amount of RON 5,534,499, respective 
RON 5,126,425, out of which: 
    2008    2007 
  No. of    No. of   
  employees  Payroll  employees  Payroll 
 
Employees  80  3,546,435  101  3,404,939 
Administrators  7  377,556  7  328,500  
Directors  9  1,610,508  9  1,392,986 
         
 
Total  95*  5,534,499  116*  5,126,425 
 
*There is a person who occupies at the same time the positions of administrator, respective 
director, based on the mandatory contract. 
 
a) Directors and administrators payroll 
 
During financial year there were no advances or credits grated to directors and administrators of 
the Company, exception are those for work travel. 
 
As at December 31, 2008 and as at December 31, 2007 the administrators have concluded 
insurance contracts of professional responsibility in his own name. 
 
The Company does not have obligations regarding pensions of past directors and 
administrators. 
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8.  INFORMATION REGARDING EMPLOYEES, ADMINISTRATION, MANAGEMENT AND 
SECURITY (continued) 
  
b) Employees 
 
As at December 31, 2008 the Company had 96 employees (2007: 116) out of which 89 were 
permanent employees (2007: 109) and 7 temporary employees (2007: 7). The average number 
of employees in year 2008 was 94 (2007: 105). 
 
In the normal course of its business, the Company pays the pension contributions for its 
employees to institutions of the Romanian State. All the company employees are members of 
the pension plan of the Romanian state. According to the Collective Labor Contract, The 
Company pays optional pensions for the employees joining Private Pension Funds. The 
Company does not operate any other pension plan or post retirement benefit plan and therefore 
has no other obligations regarding the pensions. The Company has no obligation to offer post 
retirement benefits to the employees.  
 

 
 

 
9.  ANALYSIS OF MAJOR FINANCIAL RATIOS  

 
1. Liquidity ratio                                                  2008  
 
a) Current liquidity ratio  

 

   Current assets      =     42,765,059     = 0.91 
   Current liabilities          46,876,269 

 
b) Quick liquidity ratio 
 

    Current assets-Inventories    =    42,761,822  =                                     0.91   
        Current liabilities             46,876,269 

 

   2007 

a) Current liquidity ratio   

 

   Current assets      =           103,313,496     = 2.49 
   Current liabilities            41,569,539 

 
b) Quick liquidity ratio 
 

    Current assets-Inventories    =    103,306,660  =                                     2.49  
        Current liabilities        41,569,539 

 
2. Risk ratio – not the case 
 
 

3. Activity ratio                                                      2008 
 
a) Days in receivables 
 

  Receivables**   x 365 =   13,565,351 x 365    =                                  40 days 
      Turnover*                     124,521,972   
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Days in trade payables 

 
    Trade payables x 365                 =   87,578 x 365    =                               13 days 
 Cost of materials in cost of sales        2,533,660 

 
b) Intangibles turnover  
 

     Turnover *            =      124,,552211,,997722    =                                                    0.24  
    Intangible assets           510,567,493        

 
c) Assets turnover 
 

   Turnover*         =    112244,,552211,,997722    =                                                     0.23  
   Total assets            553,332,552      

 
* Turnover represents total income from current activity 
** Receivables includes also the debtors (Note 5 a) 
 

 
9.  ANALYSIS OF MAJOR FINANCIAL RATIOS (continued) 

 

    2007 
 
a) Days in receivables 
 

  Receivables**   x 365 = 17,360,189 x 365    =                                  35 days 
      Turnover                     182,966,786   

 
Days in trade payables 

 
    Trade payables x 365                =   68,534 x 365    =                               12 days 
 Cost of materials in cost of sales         2,034,609 

 
b) Intangibles turnover  
 

     Turnover*             =    182,966,786  =                                                    0.39  
    Intangible assets         467,272,327        

 
c) Assets turnover 
 

   Turnover *         =    182,966,786  =                                                     0.32  
   Total assets  570,585,823      

 
* Turnover represents total income from current activity 
** Receivables includes also the debtors (Note 5 a) 
 
 
4. Profitability ratio                                                                      2008 
  
a) Return on total assets 
 

Income before taxes and interest expense  = 96,662,169 =                23.37%           
                        Engaged capital ***                413,631,925         
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9,  ANALYSIS OF MAJOR FINANCIAL RATIOS (continued) 
 
   2007 
 
a) Return on total assets 
 

Income before taxes and interest expense  = 130,773,668 =                28.0%           
                        Engaged capital ***                 467,094,130        

 
 
*** Engaged capital refers to the equity of the Company 
 

  
 
5. Earnings per share ratio 
 
a) Earnings per share 
 
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributed to the shareholders by 
the weighted average number of current ordinary shares, less the shares redeemed by the 
Company during the year. There were no ordinary shares potentially diluted during the year. 
 

  

   2008  2007 
 
Net profit attributed to shareholders (RON)                              95,437,422  122,814,274   
Weighted average number of ordinary   
   shares existing during the year  548,849,268  548,849,268 
 
Profit per basic share (RON per share)  0.17  0.22   
 
 
b) Price/earnings ratio 
  2008  2007 
 
Average share market price (RON) (i)  1.6701  3.3376    
Profit per share (RON) (ii)  0.1739  0.2237     
 
Price/earnings ratio (i)/(ii)  9.60  14.92   
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10.  OTHER INFORMATION 
 
a) Company presentation 
 
The Financial Investment Company Banat –Crişana (SIF) was incorporated  based on Law no. 
133/1996 by reorganization and transformation of the Private Ownership Fund Banat-Crişana 
and it is a joint-stock company functioning based on Law 31/1990 and Law 297/2004.  
 
SIF Banat –Crişana is located in Arad, Calea Victoriei, no.35A, Arad county, postal code 
310158, tel: 0257.234.167, Fax: 0257.250.165. Registering number at Trade Register is: 
J02/1898/1992, and Unique Registration Code is: 2761040. 
 
Since July 2005 SIF’s depositing company is ING Bank NV Amsterdam, Bucharest Branch, and 
the registering services company is Depozitarul Central SA Bucharest. 
 
The company’s object of activity is:  
 
- Making financial investments for maximizing the value of own shares in conformity with the 

regulations in force; 
 
- Investments portfolio administration and exercising all rights associated to the invested 

instruments; 
 
- Other secondary and contiguous activities, in conformity with the regulations in force.  
 
 
b) Information regarding the Company’s relationships with branches, associates or 

other entities in which the Company holds participations  
 
As at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 the Company’s management classified all 
the portfolio activity titles as financial assets (financial assets available for sale) and short term 
financial investments (financial assets hold for transactioning). Thus, taking in consideration the 
company’s object of activity, as at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 the Company 
does not have in portfolio investments in entities which may be classified as branches, 
associated entities or entities in which strategic participations and held. 
 
However, for motivating the management of the entities in which the Company holds shares, for 
obtaining improved financial performances, the Company concluded management contracts 
with the entities in which significant participations are held.  
 
 
c) Conversion basis used for expressing assets and liabilities elements in local 

currency, revenues and expenses initially showed in foreign currency 
 
The Company’s transactions in foreign currency are registered at the transaction date exchange 
rate. The gains and losses resulted from settlement of transactions in a foreign currency and from 
conversion of monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currency, are recognized in the 
income statement. This kind of balances is converted in RON at end of year exchange rate, at 
National Bank of Romania’s official rate, existing at the balance sheet date. 
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10.  OTHER INFORMATION (continued) 
 

a) Information related to income tax 
 
The fiscal profit afferent to the current financial year ended as at December 31, 2008 and 
December 31, 2007 is presented below: 
  December 31  December 31 
  2008  2007 
Accounting profit  96,662,169  130,773,668 
Non-deductible expenses  10,795,300  23,018,498 
Untaxed revenues  (98,791,448)   (103,242,827) 
Other fiscal deductions   -   - 
Taxable profit  8,666,021  50,549,339 
Tax rate  16%  16% 
Current income tax  1,386,563  8,087,894 
Other facilities  (161,816)   (128,500) 
Current income tax owed  1,224,747  7,959,394 
 

Income tax rate in year 2007 is 16% (2007: 16%). Approximate 64% (2007: 34%) from the 
Company’s turnover comes from financial assets (dividends and share capital increases from 
reserves from net profit or share premium) revenues which are not taxable, and 15% represents 
income from ceded financial investments (2007: 40%).  
 
 
d) The turnover on activities divisions and on geographical markets  
 
The turnover includes total revenues from the current activity. The most important part in total 
revenues is held by revenues from financial assets and ceded financial investments. 
 
 
e) Subsequent events  
 
There were no significant subsequent events after December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. 
  
 
f) Deferred income 
 
  December 31  December 31  
  2008  2007 
  
  715,788  339,375     
 
Deferred income as at December 31 2008 includes: 
- cashed amounts regarding liquidation of companies from portfolio, at which the liquidation 

process was not finished; 
- sales of shares from unlisted companies, based on direct sales contract. According to the 

direct sales contract, the income is recognized in the profit and loss account when the 
amount is cashed  
 

g) Paid instalments within a leasing contract  
 
 
As at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 the Company had no operational or financial 
leasing contracts.  
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10.  OTHER INFORMATION (continued) 
 
h) Financial leasing – not the case 
 
i) Audit fees 
 
The Company has concluded a financial audit contract in 2007 for auditing the financial 
statements for years 2007 and 2008. The total amount paid due this contract during year 2008 
was of RON 140,524. 
 
j) Discounted bills of exchange not due yet 
 
As at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 the company had no discounted bills of 
exchange not due. 
 
k) Reimbursable amounts for liabilities 
 
As at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 the company had no liabilities to be 
reimbursed. 
 
l) Possible debts and granted commitments 
 
Purchase contracts for investments in tangibles and financial assets 

 As at December 31, 2008 the company had no tangible and intangible non-current assets 
work in progress (December 31,2007: 69,186).  

 As at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 the company had no purchase 
contracts for raw materials, materials and spare parts. 

 As at December 31, 2008 the Company has concluded purchase contracts for financial 
assets, for which advance payments were made in amount of RON 760,705 (2007: RON 
5,480,076) included in the balance as at December 31, 2008 (Note 5). 

 As at December 31, 2008 the Company had subscription contracts for the share capital of 
2 other companies, in the amount of RON 35,628,110 (2007: RON 0) (Note 5). 

 
m) Accepted commitments 
 
As at December 31, 2008 the company had no accepted commitments. 
 
n) Assets or liabilities related to more than one element from the balance sheet – not 

the case. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11.  PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE 
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As at December 31, 2008 the portfolio structure of the Company was as follows: 

 

 

Description 

Acquisition NBV 

Market or 
reimbursable 

value 

Differences 

± 
         

I Financial assets    

A Securities accepted for transaction on a 
regulated market or on alternative system 
of transaction; 461,496,399 646,753,060 185,256,661 

B Securities not accepted for transaction on 
a regulated market or on alternative 
system of transaction; 239,977,106 394,081,096 154,103,990 

C Credit instruments issued by the Central 
Public Administration; - - - 

D Credit instruments issued by the Local 
Public Administration; 60,214 60,214 - 

E Bonds of the commercial companies with 
securities accepted for transaction on 
regulated market 2,698,544 2,698,544 - 

F Shares and bonds of closed commercial 
companies with securities not accepted 
for transaction on regulated market - - - 

G Other assets or financial instruments 500,000 378,597 (121,403) 

I 
Total financial assets 

704,732,263* 
  

1,043,971,511                                                                                                                                                                                                            339,239,248 

 
II 

 
Short term financial investments 

   

A Securities accepted for transaction on 
regulated market or on alternative system 
of transaction;        2,493,148 1,492,700 (1,000,448) 

II Total short term financial investments 2,493,148** 1,492,700                                                                                                                                                                                                            (1,000,448) 

III Bonds issued by municipalities, due 
within one year, recorded at 
receivables 3,584,425 3,584,425  

 Total portfolio I+II+III 710,809,836 1,049,048,636                                                                                                                                                                                                                 338,238,800 

    
 

 

* Balance sheet position „total financial assets‖ includes available securities for sale presented 
at NBV or at acquisition value decreased by the adjustment for the value loss established as at 
December 31, 2008, in total amount of RON 200,679,644 coming from recording of the value 
loss established as difference between the greater NBV and the fair value determined according 
to CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004. (Note 1) 
If the financial assets had been evaluated at the price of the last transaction it would have 
resulted a suplimentary adjustment for depreciation in amount of 25,812,257 (implemented by 
the date of 27.March.2009) 
** Balance sheet position „other short term financial investments‖ include securities held for 
transactioning, presented at acquisition value. The negative adjustment for the loss of value as 
at December 31, 2008 was in amount of RON 1,092,328. 

11.  PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE (continued) 
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As at December 31, 2008, the portfolio structure depending on the share capital held in 
companies from SIF portfolio:  
 

% shares held No. of 

companies 

       Net book value % In total 

portofolio 

More than 50% 34 206,644,112 29.35% 

From 20% to 50% 75 62,472,312 8.87% 

Less than 20% 230 434,850,230 61.78% 

Total 339 703,966,654 100.00 

 

As at December 31, 2007 the portfolio structure of the Company was as follows: 

 

Description Acquisition 
NBV 

Market or 
reimbursable 

value 

Differences 

± 
         

I Financial assets    

A Securities accepted for transaction on 
regulated market or on alternative system 
of transaction; 349,699,136 1,618,889,139 1,269,190,003 

B Securities not accepted for transaction on 
regulated market or on alternative system 
of transaction; 207,178,619 327,702,153 120,523,534 

C Credit instruments issued by the Central 
Public Administration; - - - 

D Credit instruments issued by the Local 
Public Administration; 150,626 150,626 - 

E Bonds of the commercial companies with 
securities accepted for transaction on 
regulated market 5,165,094 5,165,094 - 

F Shares and bonds of closed commercial 
companies with securities not accepted for 
transaction on controlled market - - - 

G Other assets or financial instruments 500,000 814,410 314,410 

I Total financial assets 562,693,475* 1,952,721,422                                                                                                                                                                                                            1,390,027,947 

 
II 

 
Short term financial investments 

   

A Securities accepted for transaction on 
regulated market or on alternative system 
of transaction;        9,540,018 11,218,569 1,678,551 

II Total short term financial investments 9,540,018** 11,218,569                                                                                                                                                                                                            1,678,551 

III Bonds issued by municipalities, due 
within one year, recorded at receivables 20,000 20,000  

 
Total portfolio I+II+III 572,253,493 1,963,959,991                                                                                                                                                                                                            1,391,706,498 

 

 

 

 

11.  PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE (continued) 
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* Balance sheet position „total financial assets‖ includes available securities for sale presented 
at NBV or at acquisition value decreased by the adjustment for the value loss established as at 
December 31, 2007, in total amount of RON 102,147,293 coming from recording of the value 
loss established as difference between the greater NBV and the fair value determined according 
to CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004. (Note 1) 
 
** Balance sheet position „other short term financial investments‖ include securities held for 
trading, presented at acquisition value. The negative adjustment for the loss of value as at 
December 31, 2007 was in amount of RON 1,262,239. 
 
In accordance with the legislation in force, the depositing services for the assets held by the 
Company were ensured by ING Bank NV Amsterdam, Bucharest Branch. 
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12.  BANK DEPOSITS 
 

As at December 31, 2008 the Company had the following bank deposits: 
 

BANK 
DEPOSIT 
AMOUNT 

INTEREST  
RATE 

 
% FROM 
TOTAL 

INTEREST 

DATE OF 

NAME ACCOUNT 
DUE DATE 

<60 days 
DUE DATE 

>60 days 
% AMOUNT SET UP MATURITY 

ALPHA BANK RON 500,000  23.25 10,828.77 1.32 28/11/2008 14/01/2009 
ALPHA BANK RON 670,000  24.00 14,978.63 1.82 28/11/2008 27/01/2009 
ALPHA BANK RON 1,050,000  24.00 18,641.10 2.26 05/12/2008 04/02/2009 
BCR RON  200,000 14.00 5,522.22 0.67 22/10/2008 07/01/2009 
BCR RON  1,000,000 12.30 40,316.67 4.90 05/09/2008 11/01/2009 
BCR RON 900,000  19.00 9,500.00 1.15 12/12/2008 11/01/2009 
BCR RON  250,000 14.00 6,902.78 0.84 22/10/2008 21/01/2009 
BCR RON 1,270,000  19.00 6,702.78 0.81 22/12/2008 22/01/2009 
BCR RON  1,000,000 12.00 39,333.33 4.78 05/09/2008 08/02/2009 
BRD RON 540,000  19.00 2,565.00 0.31 23/12/2008 22/01/2009 
BRD RON  1,000,000 9.50 79,430.56 9.65 06/03/2008 05/03/2009 
BRD RON  1,000,000 9.50 79,430.56 9.65 06/03/2008 05/03/2009 
BRD RON  500,000 9.50 39,715.28 4.82 06/03/2008 05/03/2009 
BRD RON  5,000,000 20.00 55,555.56 6.75 12/12/2008 11/05/2009 
BRD RON  1,650,000 19.00 17,416.67 2.12 12/12/2008 11/06/2009 
ING BANK RON 190,000  12.00 570.00 0.07 23/12/2008 05/01/2009 
PROCREDIT BANK RON  691,800 13.70 17,916.67 2.18 24/10/2008 22/01/2009 
PROCREDIT BANK RON  560,785 11.25 35,260.32 4.28 11/06/2008 12/04/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON 1,600,000  19.50 12,133.33 1.47 18/12/2008 07/01/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON 200,000  17.25 4,216.67 0.51 18/11/2008 08/01/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON 500,000  20.00 6,111.11 0.74 10/12/2008 11/01/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  100,000 17.25 2,108.33 0.26 18/11/2008 22/01/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON 100,000  20.00 1,666.67 0.20 02/12/2008 22/01/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON 1,000,000  20.00 12,222.22 1.48 10/12/2008 22/01/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  200,000 20.00 4,111.11 0.50 25/11/2008 08/02/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 20.00 12,333.33 1.50 25/11/2008 23/02/2009 
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BANK 

 
 

DEPOSIT 
AMOUNT 

INTEREST  
RATE 

% FROM 
TOTAL 

INTEREST DATE OF 

NAME ACCOUNT 
DUE DATE 

<60 days 
DUE DATE 

>60 days 
% AMOUNT  SET UP MATURITY 

         

TRANSILVANIA RON  1,000,000 9.50 79,430.56 9.65 06/03/2008 05/03/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  200,000 20.00 4,111.11 0.50 25/11/2008 08/03/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 20.00 12,333.33 1.50 25/11/2008 23/03/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  200,000 20.00 4,111.11 0.50 25/11/2008 08/04/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 20.00 12,333.33 1.50 25/11/2008 23/04/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  200,000 20.00 4,111.11 0.50 25/11/2008 07/05/2009 
TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 20.00 12,333.33 1.50 25/11/2008 21/05/2009 

TOTAL  8,520,000 19,152,585  823,114.67 100   
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12.  BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 
 

As at December 31, 2008 the Company had the following bank deposits: 

BANK 
 

DEPOSIT  
AMOUNT 

 
INTEREST 

RATE 

 
% FROM 
TOTAL 

INTEREST 

 
DATE OF 

NAME ACCOUNT 
DUE DATE 
<60 days 

DUE DATE 
>60 days 

% AMOUNT SET UP MATURITY 

BANCPOST RON  3,000,000 7.85 8,504.17 0.29% 19/12/07 18/06/08 
BCR RON 122.062  3.25 11.02 0.00% 31/12/07 31/12/07 
BCR RON  150,000 7.50 1,906.25 0.07% 01/11/07 06/01/08 
BCR RON  2,000,000 7.90 154,050.00 5.32% 15/01/07 10/01/08 
BCR RON  2,000,000 7.90 154,050.00 5.32% 15/01/07 10/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 7.90 77,025.00 2.66% 15/01/07 10/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 7.90 77,025.00 2.66% 15/01/07 10/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 7.90 77,025.00 2.66% 15/01/07 10/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 7.90 77,025.00 2.66% 15/01/07 10/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 7.90 77,025.00 2.66% 15/01/07 10/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON  1,000,000 8.00 77,111.11 2.66% 19/01/07 17/01/08 
BCR RON 270.000  8.00 1,026.00 0.04% 14/12/07 23/01/08 
BCR RON  5,000,000 7.75 307,847.22 10.64% 21/03/07 18/03/08 
BCR RON  3,000,000 7.80 8,450.00 0.29% 19/12/07 17/04/08 
BCR RON  7,950,000 7.50 193,781.25 6.70% 06/09/07 04/09/08 
BRD RON  5,500,000 8.00 15,888.89 0.55% 19/12/07 18/05/08 
BRD RON  6,500,000 8.00 18,777.78 0.65% 19/12/07 17/06/08 
BRD RON  1,700,000 7.10 45,933.06 1.59% 17/08/07 14/08/08 
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BANK  

 
DEPOSIT  
AMOUNT 

 

INTEREST 
RATE 

% FROM 
TOTAL 

INTEREST DATE OF 

NAME ACCOUNT 
DUE DATE 

<60 days 
DUE DATE 

>60 days 
% AMOUNT  SET UP MATURITY 

         
  BRD RON  850,000 7.50 20,895.83 0.72% 05/09/07 03/09/08 
BRD RON  5,200,000 7.50 110,500.00 3.82% 21/09/07 19/09/08 
ING BANK RON 708,735  2.50 196.87 0.01% 28/12/07 02/01/08 
PROCREDIT BANK RON  500,000 8.50 41,102.74 1.42% 13/01/07 10/01/08 
PROCREDIT BANK RON  629,232 8.25 18,018.45 0.62% 20/08/07 19/08/08 
TRANSILVANIA RON 70,000  7.00 108.89 0.00% 24/12/07 02/01/08 
TRANSILVANIA 
TRANSILVANIA 

RON 
RON 

100,000 
500,000  

7.00 
7.00 

252.78 
1,263.89 

0.01% 
0.04% 

19/12/07 
19/12/07 

03/01/08 
06/01/08 

TRANSILVANIA RON 1,500,000  7.00 3,208.33 0.11% 21/12/07 06/01/08 
TRANSILVANIA 
TRANSILVANIA 
TRANSILVANIA 

RON 
RON 
RON 

 
 

 

4,700,000 
3,000,000 
5,000,000 

8.00 
7.50 
7.75 

366,600.00 
91,250.00 

307,847.22 

12.67% 
3.15% 

10.64% 

15/01/07 
08/08/07 
21/03/07 

10/01/08 
04/03/08 
18/03/08 

TRANSILVANIA 
TRANSILVANIA 

RON 
RON  

3,500,000 
3,500,000 

8.00 
8.00 

10,111.11 
10,111.11 

0.35% 
0.35% 

19/12/07 
19/12/07 

17/07/08 
18/08/08 

  
    TOTAL          3,270,797 76,679,232      2,893,706.74 100.00%   
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13. STRUCTURE OF GROSS INCOME 
 

  Year ended at  
December 31 

 

Year ended at  
December 31  

  2008  2007 

     
1 Revenues from long term financial 

investments1  
79,565,545  62,000,540 

2 Revenues from short term financial 
investments (interest for bonds -  short 
term financial investments) 

 
- 

  
- 

3 Revenues from long term receivables -  - 
4 Revenues on disposal of financial 

investments2 
19,224,303  73,230,681 

5 Revenues from commissions afferent 
to workings and services 

 
- 

  
- 

6 Foreign exchange gains 99,167  3,397 
7 Interest income 6,056,633  6,126,617 
8 Revenues from bad debts written off 

and subsequently collected 
-  - 

9 Revenues from own work capitalized -  - 
10 Write back of provisions3 19,225,892  40,989,924 
11 Other revenues 

- from research studies 
- rental and royalty income 
- from sundry activities 
- from subsidies  
- from other revenues 
- from discounts received 
- from other financial revenues 

 
- 

92,668 
- 
- 

257,753 
- 

11 

  
- 

71,543 
- 
- 

291,720 
- 

252,364 
12 Revenues from subsidies for 

extraordinary events and other similar 
revenues 

 
- 

  
- 

     
13 TOTAL INCOME 124,521,972  182,966,786 

 
1 Revenues from financial investments include revenues from suitably dividends in total amount 
of RON 45,833,354 (2007: RON 38,868,260) and share capital increases from share premium 
or reserves constitute from net profit made by the companies in the SIF portfolio in total amount 
of RON 33,732,191 (2007: RON 23,132,280). 
 
2 Revenues on disposal of financial investments include the revenues on disposal of financial 
assets in total amount of RON 19,062,703 (2007: RON 68,546,492) and the gains from disposal 
of short term financial investments in total amount of RON 161,600 (2007: RON 4,684,189). 

  
3 Revenues from write back of provisions include revenues from reversal of impairment losses 
on financial non-current assets in total amount of RON 14,419,312 (2007: RON 38,794,359) and 
revenues from adjustments made for depreciation of the current assets in total amount of RON 
4,806,580 (2007: RON 2,195,565), which represent reversal of the provisions for incentives 
granted to the employees and to the administrators as a result of the realisation of the profit and 
of the provisions constituted for auditing of the financial statements. 
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14.  STRUCTURE OF EXPENSES 

 

Year ended at  Year ended at 
December 31  

2008 
 December 31  

2007 

Losses on amounts receivable in relation with 
long term financial investments 

-  - 

Losses on disposal of financial investments 9,215,803  24,301,153 
Expense with commissions and fees4 2,657,610  2,830,851 
Foreign exchange losses 1,939  33,350 
Interest expenses 2  48 
Bank commissions and similar charges 29,009  30,816 
Bad debts written off 3,569  59,141 
Expenses with depreciation and provisions5 685,382  12,971,816 

Expenses with third party services 
-maintenance and repair expenses 
-royalties and rental expenses 
-insurance premiums 
-research studies 
-entertaining, promotion and advertising 
-transport of goods and personnel 
-travel expenses 
-postage and telecommunications 
-other third party services 
-other expenses 
-discounts granted 
-other financial expenses 

 
57,030 
51,074 
48,093 

- 
281,354 

488 
152,115 
420,966 
558,135 
169,992 

- 
1,092,329 

  
99,965 
29,754 
38,972 

- 
226,295 

2,513 
107,134 
221,067 
335,950 
234,576 

- 
1,233,643 

Other taxes, duties and similar expenses 158,141  164,793 
Other expenses 

-consumables 
-materials in the form of small inventory 
-materials not stored 
-electricity, heating and water 
-externally contracted manpower 
-salaries 
-social security contributions 

 
92,419 

 
27,172 
56,308 

156,731 
- 

10,121,047 
1,823,095 

  
82,813 

 
25,608 
51,948 

124,042 
- 

7,372,343 
1,614,527 

Expenses related to natural disasters and other 
extraordinary events 

-  - 

Income tax 1,224,747  7,959,394 
Other taxes not included above  

- 
  

- 

TOTAL EXPENSES 29,084,550  60,152,512 
4 Expenses with commissions and fees include the commissions owed to depositing companies, 
registry services companies, commission of 0.1% over the net assets owed to CNVM, financial 
investment services companies for the transactions made, audit fees, fees for court officers and 
other expenses with commissions and fees. 
5 Expenses with depreciation and provisions include the expenses regarding the adjustments for 
loss of value of current assets in the amount of RON 212,207 (2007: RON 7,745,952), 
expenses with provisions in the amount of RON 50,270 (2007: RON 4,806,580) and expenses 
with the depreciation of the assets in the amount of RON 422,905 (2007: RON 419,284).   
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15.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 
 

  December 31  December 31  
  2008  2007 
     
Cash and bank accounts 
Cash at banks  132,678  111,577     
Cash in hand  9,588  1,655     
Cheques   -  -    
Cash advances and other values  10,228  7,580     
  
Total Cash and bank accounts  152,494  120,812   
 
Bank deposits  27,672,585  79,950,029     
Deposit certificates  -  -    
Less deposits with residual due date     
     greater than 3 months  (8,810,785)   (41,329,232)       
Total debentures and current investments (Note 12)  18,861,800  38,620,797     
 
 
Debentures and investments  2,440,930  769,599    
Speculative investments  2,493,148  8,770,419     
Less debentures with residual due date 
     Greater than 3 months  -   -     
Total debentures and liquid investments  4,934,078  9,540,018     
     
 
Total cash and cash equivalent  23,948,372  48,281,627     
 
 
As at December 31, 2008 there is no restricted cash. 
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16.  RESERVES 
 
As at December 31, 2008, the Company’s reserves in total amount of RON 366.693.963 (2007: 
RON 392.779.315), as well as the reported results in total amount of RON -103,384,386 (2007: 
RON -103,384,386) have included: 

 
December 31, 2008 

 
Gross amounts 

  
Income tax 
provisions 

 

Net amounts 

 
A     legal reserve  

 
10,976,985 

  
- 

 
10,976,985 

B     reserves constituted from 
adjustments for loss of value of 
securities held as financial 
fixed assets 

 
 

(110,705,896) 

   

(110,705,896) 

C     reserves from 
investments/shares value 
acquired for free  

 
 

161,124,550  

 
 

(25,779,928) 

 

135,344,622 

D     reserves representing 
surplus realised from reserves 
from revaluation 

 
 

            256,477 
 

  
 

- 

  
 

256,477 
 

E     other reserves - constituted 
In accordance with Law 
no, 133/1996      

 
 

 145,486,088 

  
 

(23,277,774) 

  
 

122,208,314 

F    other reserves –  
own founds  

 
186,693,328 

  
- 

  
186,693,328 

G     other reserves –  
Fiscal facilities 

 
19,832,945 

  
(3,173,271) 

  
16,659,674 

H     reserve from revaluation of 
non-current assets 

 
6,262,449 

  
(1,001,991) 

 
5,260,458 

I      reported result (103,384,386)    (103,384,386) 

      

Total 316,542,540  (53,232,964)  263,309,576 

                                                                 Note 2 (a) 
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16.  RESERVES (continued) 
 

 
December 31, 2007 

Gross 
amounts 

 
Income tax 
provisions 

 Net amounts 

 
A     legal reserve  

 
10,976,985 

  
- 

 
10,976,985 

B     reserves constituted from 
adjustments for loss of value of 
securities held as financial 
fixed assets 

 
 
 

- 

   

- 

C     reserves from 
investments/shares value 
acquired for free  

 
 

160,868,408 

  
 

(25,738,945) 

 

135,129,463 

D     reserves representing 
surplus realised from reserves 
from revaluation 

 
 

190,493 
 

  
 

- 

  
 

190,493 
 

E     other reserves - 
constituted 

In accordance with Law 
no. 133/1996 

 
 

145,486,088 

  
 

(23,277,774) 

  
 

122,208,314 

F    other reserves –  
own founds  

 
102,298,502 

  
- 

  
102,298,502 

G     other reserves –  
Fiscal facilities 

 
19,832,945 

  
(3,173,271) 

  
16,659,674 

H     reserve from revaluation 
of non-current assets 

 
6,328,433 

  
(1,012,549) 

 
5,315,884 

I      reported result 
 

(103,384,386) 
  

- 
  

(103,384,386) 

TOTAL 342,597,468  (53,202,539) 
 

289,394,929 

                                              Note 2 (a) 
 

A. Legal reserves, in total amount of RON 10,976,985 (2007: RON 10,976,985), are 
constituted in accordance with Law 31/1990 by allocating a 5% from the accounting profit 
(calculated according to Romanian accounting standards) until when the reserve fund reaches 
the level of 20% of the share capital. During year 2006 the level of 20% of the share capital was 
reached.  
 
B. Reserves constituted from adjustments for loss of value of the securities held as 
financial fixed assets in amount of RON -110,705,896 as a result of evaluation of the portfolio 
at fair value as at December 31, 2008 and of recording the loss of value established as a 
difference between the higher book value and the fair value determined in accordance with 
CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004, taking into consideration the depreciation which was recorded in 
the previous years in the results. (2007: RON 0). 
 
C. Reserves constituted from the amount of the titles and shares acquired for free from 
the companies in which the Company has participations, in total amount of RON 
135,344,622 (2007: RON 135,129,463), which includes the value of the shares resulted from 
capital increase by incorporation of elements of the equity. The deferred tax afferent to these 
reserves in total amount of RON 25,779,928 (2007: RON 25,738,945) was deducted from the 
gross amount of these reserves in total amount of RON 161,124,550 (2007: RON 160,868,408) 
and was calculated with 16% rate, in force starting with January 1, 2005. 
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16. RESERVES (continued) 
 
D. Surplus reserve realised from revaluation reserves in amount of RON 256,477 (2007: 
RON 190,493) represent the revaluation reserve afferent to disposal of tangible assets. 
 
E. Other reserves – constituted as a result of the application of Law no. 133/1996, in 
amount of RON 122,208,314 (2007: RON 122,208,314). The provision for the tax on profit 
afferrent to these reserves in amount of RON 23,277,774 (2007: RON 23,277,774) was 
deducted from the gross value of these reserves in amount of RON 145,486,088 (2007: RON 
145,486,088) and was calculated at 16% rate, in force starting with January 1, 2005.  

 
F. Reserve constitute as financing source, in total amount of RON 186,693,328, is 
constituted based on the BOD approval (2007: RON 102,298,502). These reserves will be used 
in the future in accordance with the decision of BOD. 

 
G. Other reserves – fiscal facilities in amount of RON 16,659,674 (2007: RON 16,659,674). 
The provision for the deffered tax afferent to these reserves in total amount of RON 3,173,271 
(2007: RON 3,173,271) was deducted from the gross value of these reserves in total amount of 
RON 19,832,945 (2007: RON 19,832,945) and was calculated at 16% rate, in force starting with 
January 1, 2005.  
 
H. Revaluation reserves in total amount of RON 5,260,458 (2007: RON 5,315,884) represents 
the net revaluation value of the buildings, established in accordance with the regulations in 
force. The revaluation reserves represent the difference between the gross value in amount of 
RON 6,262,449 (2007: RON 6,328,433) and the provision for the deffered tax afferent to the 
revaluation in total amount of RON 1,001,991, calculated at 16% rate (2007: RON 1,012,549).  

 
I. Reported result in amount of RON -103,384,386 (2007: RON -103,384,386) represent the 
reported result from the adopting for the first time of IAS, less IAS 29 in amount of RON 
5,437,415 (2007: RON 5,437,415) and the unfavourable reported result coming from the 
application of the Accounting Regulation according with IV-th Directive of the Economic 
European Communities in amount of RON -108,821,801 (2006: RON -108,821,801). 
 
 

17.  THIRD PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
During years 2008 and 2007 the Company had no commercial transactions with related party 
and taking in consideration the nature of activity of SIF there is no financing transactions with 
related party other than participations at their share capital. 
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18.  FINANCIAL RISKS 

 
As a consequence of it’s operations, the Company is exposed to several risks as follows: 
 
 

a. Foreign currency risk  
 
The foreign currency risk represents the risk of fluctuation of a financial instrument’s value due to 
the variation of the exchange rate.  
 
During year 2008, the Company made local (RON) and foreign currency transactions. The 
local currency has fluctuated comparing to the foreign currencies, EURO and USD. At the 
end of the year it has recorded a depreciation and the current activity financial result of year 
2008 was exposed to positive influences due to the exchange rate. 
The financial instruments used give the possibility of maintaining the value of monetary 
assets hold in RON, by making investments and receiving interest based on due date. 
 
The Company did not perform any transaction with derivatives during 2007 and 2008. 
 
 

b.  Interest rate risk 
 
The interest rate risk represents the risk of fluctuation of a financial instrument’s value due to the 
variation of the interest rates on the market. 
 
The interest rate risk is composed by the risk of fluctuating recorded in the value of a financial 
instrument following the variation of the interest rate and the risk of differences between the due 
date of the carrying interest financial assets and the due date of the carrying interest liabilities 
used for financing the respective assets. 
 
The period when the interest rate of a financial instrument is stable indicates the exposure of 
the interest rate risk. The financial instruments are carrying interest at the market rate, 
therefore is considered that the difference between the fair value and NBV is immaterial. 
 
The majority of the Company’s financial assets are in stable currency, which have interest 
rates with immaterial variation.   
 
 

c. Price risk 
 
The price risk represents the risk of fluctuation of a financial instrument’s value due to the 
variation of the change of prices on the market, whether these changes are caused by factors 
which are specific for individual instruments, or by factors  which affect all the transactioned 
instruments on the market. 
 
In year 2008, as a result of the world financial crysis, Romania was affected by the price risk 
by pronounced depreciation of the shares quotations. 
 
Taking into consideration that the Company holds in portfolio a large number of quoted 
shares, it was affected unfavourable by the price risk. 
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18.  FINANCIAL RISKS (continued) 

 
 
d. Credit risk  

 
The credit risk represents the risk for one of the participants to a financial instrument not to fulfil 
an obligation, fact that determines the other part to register a financial loss. 
 
The financial assets which bring many potential credit risks to the Company mainly include 
the receivable from the current activity. These are presented at the net value, less the 
provision for doubtful receivables. The Company’s management monitories constantly and 
closely the exposure to credit risk, in order not to suffer losses following focusing of the loan 
in a specific sector or activity.  
 

e. Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk, named also as financing risk, represents the risk for a company to have 
difficulties in accumulating founds to respect the engagements regarding the financial 
instruments.   
 
The Company watches the evolution of the liquidities level for being able to fulfil its 
obligations at the date these become due. The assets and liabilities are analyzed based on 
the remaining period till the contractual due dates in Note 5 ‖Situation of receivables and 
debts‖. 
 
 

f. Cash flow risk 
 
The cash flow risk represents the risk of size fluctuation of the future cash flows associated 
to a monetary financial instrument. For example, in case of a financial instrument with 
fluctuating rate, this kind of fluctuations will result in an effective interest rate modification for 
the financial instrument, usually without modifying its fair value. 
 
Through the nature of the activity, the Company is not exposed to a major risk of modifying 
the estimated cash flows, both from financial instruments fluctuation and from interest rate 
modification.  
 
 

g. Economic environment risk 
 
The Romanian economy keeps showing specific emerging markets characteristics and, as a 
consequence, a degree of uncertainty still exists regarding the future development of the 
economic and social enviroment.  
 

 
h. Derivatives incorporated in the host financial instruments 

 
There are derivatives incorporated in the host financial instruments, in principal term 
exchange contracts, incorporated in contracts concluded by the Company for purchases of 
tangible assets, contracts expressed in other currencies than local currency (RON) and than 
the reporting currency used by the entities which are part of the respective contracts. As at 
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 the Company has not concluded any contracts 
which incorporate term exchange contracts. 
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19.  CONCENTRATION OF EXPOSURE 

 
 
a. Bank deposits 
 
As at December 31, 2008 the Company’s exposure towards banks was as follows: 
     
   Percentage  Amounts as at  Percentage  Amounts as at 
Client  from total  December 31  from total  December 31 
  deposits  2008  deposits  2007 
 
Banca Transilvania      35.1%    9,700,000  27.4%    21,870,000 
BRD  35.0%  9,690,000  24.7%  19,750,000 
BCR Arad     16.7%   4,620,000  41.9%   33,492,062  
Alpha Bank  8.0%   2,220,000  0.0%   -  
Procredit Bank  4.5%  1,252,585  1.4%  1,129,232 
ING Bank  0.7%  190,000  0.9%  708,735 
Banc Post  0%  0  3.7%  3,000,000 
Total    100%    27,672,585  100%  79,950,029  
 
 
 
b. Financial assets 
 
As at December 31, 2008 the Company’s exposure towards the companies in which had 
financial assets was as follows: 
 
     
   Percentage  Amounts as at  Percentage  Amounts as at 
Client  from total  December 31  from total  December 31 
  assets  2008  assets  2007 
 
Banca Transilvania     10.02%   70,313,540  7.91%   44,058,249 
Vrancart Adjud      7.45%     52,263,577  8.54%     47,539,908 
Banca Comercială Română    6.78%   47,548,125  8.54%   47,548,125 
Calipso Oradea  5.58%  39,142,739  0.47%  2,634,993 
Banca Română pentru Dezvoltare    5.29%  37,093,690  5.94%  33,066,133 
BancPost     5.22%  36,589,701  6.57%  36,589,701 
Biofarm  4.52%  31,718,594  4.26%  23,699,859 
Mechel Campia Turzii  3.81%  26,694,118  4.79%  26,689,605 
Mopal  2.88%  20,197,562  3.63%  20,197,562 
Napomar         2.77%   19,455,428  1.86%   10,383,000 
Central Petroşani  2.14%  14,984,375  0.11%  587,073 
Mittal Steel Hunedoara  2.11%  14,803,188  2.66%  14,803,060 
Ario Bistriţa  1.86%    13,034,523  2.34%    13,023,941 
Petrom  1.76%  12,311,946  1.07%  5,964,894 
Gaz Vest   1.50%    10,506,800  1.89%    10,506,800 
Turbomecanica  1.46%  10,226,242  1.84%  10,226,242 
 
Total      65.15%    456,884,148  62.42%    347,519,145  
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20.  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

 
Litigations   
 

 As at December 31, 2008 the Company formed part of 187 litigations pending. From the 
187 litigations SIF Banat–Crişana SA is involved as plaintiff in 162 litigations, and in 25 
litigations is involved as defendant. The most of the litigations has as object cancelling of 
BOD decisions of the companies in portfolio (59 litigations) and recovering of dividends 
and/or bankrupt (22 litigations). During year 2008 there have been 27 won litigations. 

The object of the appealed BOD decisions is formed mainly from increases and decreases 
in share capital, divisions, dissolutions and disposal of assets of the company by violating 
the law and social interest. It has appealed at an action in law because the BOD decisions 
were taken by violating the provisions of the law and of the constituent acts concerning the 
legal and statutory formal procedures regarding the convocation and holding of BOD, the 
preferential right at increases of share capital and the majority shareholders’ abusive 
exercise of the their rights, etc. 
 

The Company’s management considers that the result of these litigations will not 
generate losses, therefore there was no provision constituted for these litigations. 

       

 As at December 31, 2008 the Company has a legal action opened against AVAS 
following the discovering of the absolute nullity of the contract of shares assignment in 
total amount of RON  3,912,930  to SC Celrom SA Drobeta Turnu Severin, concluded 
between AVAS and the Company. 

 
At the date of the accounting report, for the legal action with AVAS for compensating the 
shares lost in court, the Bucharest Court of Appeals rejected the appeal from file no 
5063/3/2006 and the litigation is in term of appeal. 

 
The Company’s management considers that the result of this litigation could be not 
favourable for the Company, that is why, a provision was constitute for the amount of the 
shares initially held in SC Celrom SA Drobeta Turnu Severin. (Note 2). 
 

 Among the actions in court there are litigations with the object of the procedures of 
insolvency in which SIF Banat is creditor or shareholder of the insolvent companies. 

 

 The last category of the files consists of litigations in which SIF Banat-Crişana SA has 
the quality of warrant. The object of the files are shares in revendication or compensation 
based on Law no. 10/2001 or on other legislations which regulate the reconstituition of 
the assets’ ownership for companies at which SIF Banat Crişana is or was shareholder. 

 
The Company’s management considers that the result of these litigations will not 
generate losses, therefore there was no provision constituted for these litigations. 
 

Taxation  
 
The taxation system in Romania is continuously developing and is subject to varying 
interpretations and to constant changes, which may be retroactive. Although the actual tax 
due on a transaction may be minimal, penalties can be significant as they may be calculated 
based on the value of the transaction and can be as high as 0.1% per day, plus penalties. In 
Romania, tax periods remain open for tax audits for 5 years.  
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20.  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued) 

 
Granted securities 
 
As at December 31, 2008 the Company did not have any collateral deposits. 
 
 

21.  INFORMATIONS REGARDING THE VALUE ADJUSTMENT APPROVED BY 
IMPLEMENTATION OF CNVM ORDER NO. 11/2009 

  
 Consequence the application of CNVM Order no.11/2009 in completion of Order 

no.75/2005, The Company have recognized directly into equity at „Reserves constituted 
from adjustments for loss of value of the securities held as financial fixed assets” the 
adjustments for  financial fixed assets related to financial year 2008. 

 The adustments for loss value of financial fixed assets, for the year 2008 have been 
assigned below: 

 
           
        Financial non-current 

assets for wich have been 
assigned 

        adjustments for loss 
    value 

Booked 
value 

Market value 
or 

reimbursment 
value 

Adjustments 
recognized in 
the previous 
years in the 

profit and loss 
account 

Adjustments 
related to 

2008 

- Securities allowed to be 
transactioned on a 
reglemented market or an 
alternative one 

222,031,969 101,555,607 (13,256,822) (107,219,540) 

- Securities not allowed to 
be transactioned on a 
reglemented market or an 
alternative one 

8,451,301 4,100,084 (986,264) (3,364,953) 

- Other assets or financial 
instruments 

500,000 378,597 - (121,403) 

Total 230,983,270 106,034,288 (14,243,086) (110,705,896) 

 
  

 
The total value of the adjustments regarding the loss of  financial non-current assets related 
to 2008 is 110,705,896 RON and can be found in balance sheet at the row 69 „Reserves  
constituted from adjustments for loss of value of the securities held as financial fixed assets‖. 
When the securities, for which have been made adjustment or for which the value market is 
increasing, are written off from portofolio, the alteration will be reflected into the reserve 
account. 
If the profit and loss account had been affected with the value of the adjustments for losses, 
as in previous years, the financial result would have been reduced with the amount of 
110,705,896 RON. 
 
     
Ioan Cuzman   Ştefan Doba 
Chairman – Chief Executive Officer  Economic Director  
 


